
Under provisions of stere law
, this report is a public d

ocument A copy of the report has been submitted to 
the entity and other appropriate public officials The 
report is availabie for public inspection at the Baton 
Rou~  office of me LegislativeAuditor and

, where 
appropriate at the off~ce of the parish clerk of court

. 

Release Date s). i <~I' ~ ?J' 

G R E A T E R  B A T O N  R O U G E  

P O R T  C O M M IS S IO N  

D E C E M B E R  3 1 ~ 2 0 0 3  

C O M P R E H E N S IV E A N N U A L 

F IN A N C IA L R E P O R T  

A  C O M P O N E N T  U N IT O F 

T H E S TA T E O F L O U IS IA N A  



C O M P R E H E N S IV E A N N U A L 

F IN A N C IA L R E P O R T  ElF T H E 

G R E A T E R  B A T O N  R O U G E  

P O R T  C O M M IS S IO N  

FO R T H E Y EA R E N D E D 

D E C E M B E R 3 1 ~ 2 [30 3 

P R E PA R E D  B Y T H E 

D E P A R T M E N T  O F F IN A N C E 

A N D  A D M IN IS T R A T IO N  

A L F R E D  S TA R N S 

D IR E C T O R O F A D M IN IS T R AT IO N /F IN A N C E 



TA BLE O F CO NT ENT S 

INT RO DUCT O RY SECT IO N 

M ESSAGE FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

LETTER O F TRANSM ITTAL 

GFOA CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT 

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

LIST O F PRINCIPAL OFFICERS 

FINANCIAL SECTIO N 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

MANAGEM ENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS: 

PROPRIETARY FUND - ENTERPRISE FUND: 

BALANCE SHEET 

STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

STATEM ENT OF CASH FLOW S 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

SUPPLEM ENTARY INFO RMATION 

SCHEDULE OF LEASE INFO RM ATION 

SCHEDULE OF FUTURE LEASE RENTALS REVENUE W ITHO UT OPTIONS 

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY M AJO R CATEGORY 

SCHEDULE OF ADM INISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) BY FACILITY 

SCHEDULE OF COM M ISSIONER'S PER DIEM 

STATIST ICA L SECTIO N (UNAUDITED) 

TEN YEAR COMPARISON OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)INET INCOME (LOSS) 

SUMMARY OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND NET INCOME (LOSS)- LAST TEN YEARS 

FIVE YEAR CARGO TONNAGE BY FACILITY/TEN YEAR TONNAGE COMPARISON 
FISCAL YEAR CARGO COM PARISON 

GENERAL CARGO DOCK TONNAGEIFIVE YEAR CARGO M OVEM ENTS 

PERCENTAG E OF TONNAGE HANDLED BY FACILITY/M ONTHLY CARGO ACTIVITY 

CO M PLIA NCE SECT IO N 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPO RT ON COM PLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT O F THE BASIC FINANCIAL 

STATEM ENTS PERFO RM ED IN ACCORDANCE W ITH GOVERNM ENT AUDITING 

STA NDARDS 

SCHEDULE OF CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 

SCHEDULE OF PRIO R YEAR AUDIT FINDING S 

STATE OF LO UISIANA, GREATER BATON ROUGE PORT COM M ISSIO N ANNUAL 

FINANCIAL STATEM ENT 

PAGE 

1 

3 

9 

10 

12 

14 

STATEM ENT 

1'9 A 

21 B 

2.2 C 

24 

SCHEDULE 

4 0 1 

42 ;' 

43 3 

44 4 

4'5 5 

47 6 

41i 

49 

51 

53 

54 

55 

58 

5"9 

60 



 



 

PORT O F GREATER 
BA TON  ROU GE 

l~WtOlrmelbx~  - l~mIAIle~ MT~r-ll3mt ~ Plkem  (225) 342-1660 ~ Faxi225)342-1(~6 ~ www.portgbr.com 

M arch 31, 2004 

The Board of Comm issioner s 
Gre ater  Baton Rouge Port Com m ission 
2425 Ern est W ilson Drive 
Port Allen, LA 70767 

Dear Board of Com m issioners 

During 2003, the Port of Greater Baton Rouge has achieved significant and very real progress 
towards realizing som e im portant goals identified in th e Strategic Plan developed for the port at 
the beginning of th e new millennium . The port has taken  significant steps to diversify its cargo 
bas e an d oper ation an d will continue this effort for the com ing year. Th e challenge now is to 
continue buildin g on the m om entum  created in 2003, to achieve even m ore goals envisioned  for 
th e port. 

Th e response to th e new Container -On-Bar ge service at th e Inlan d Rivers M arine Term inal has  
already created a level of dem an d so that new in fras tructure im provem en ts can  be initiated as  

soon as possible. The port has been fortunate to locate three new major tenants an d develop 
lasting public/private partnerships, which will be strategic for its future growth. Th ese new 
co mpanies, facilities, an d services will contribute to the future deman d for port projects, 
additional facilities, value-added  services an d lan d for new developm en t. 

In 2003, th e Port em barked  on a num ber of im provem ents and new facilities th at will im pact port 
operations an d our fu ture growth. A ccom plishm en ts for 2003 in cluded : 

~ Com pletion of the 10-acre container  yard constructed at th e Inlan d River s M arine 
Term inal an d leased to th e Dow Chem ical Com pany. 

~ Launchi ng of th e new Contain er-on-Bar ge service, whi ch is now provi din g weekly 
services to th e Ports of New Orlean s an d Houston an d is of significan t benefit to th e 

regional petrochemical industry in the four-parish area served by the port. 
~ Th e bulk sugar storage an d distribution facility cam e on line in 2003 an d provides 

altern ative tran sportation cost advan tages an d m arket pricing for th e Louisian a sugarcan e 
industry. 

~ The Port has  enhan ced  its security initiatives an d is working closely with  th e U .S. Coas t 
Guard an d other local an d regional agencies to im prove security an d deter terrorism at 
Port facilities an d along th e M ississippi Ri ver . W ith th e efforts of Congressm an  Richard 
Bak er an d other congressional rep resentatives, the port received a $1.6 million gr an t from 
the Tran sportation Security Administration (TSA) to continue this effort. 
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M arch 31, 2004 

Board of Comm issioners and Executive Director 
Greater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission 
Port Allen, Louisiana 

GAAP also requires a M an agement's Discussion an d Analysis (M D&A) that is designed to 
com plem ent this letter of transmittal an d the basic finan cial statem en ts. The Port's M D&A can  be 
found in th e finan cial section im m ed iately following th e report of the in dependen t auditors

. 

ORG ANIZATION AND CONTENT 

This Comprehensive Annual Finan cial Report has been  prepared  in  accordance with  guidelin es 
recomm ended  by the Govern m ental Accounting Standards Board an d th e Governm en t Fin an ce 
Offi cers Association. It co nsists of four sections: 

2 

Introductory Section - This section includes th e Executive Director's m es sage
, this 

letter of transmittal, a co py of the 2002 Certificate of Achievem en t Award, an 
organizational chart an d a list of Comm issioners an d Directors . 

Financial Sec tion - This section in cludes th e auditor's rep ort
, m an agem en t's 

di scussion an d analysis, th e audited financial statem ents
, in cluding notes to th e 

statem ents, an d supplem en tary in form ation. 

Statistical Section - This section co ntain s a revenue an d expense comparison for 
ten years, inform ation relative to cargo han dled at the differen t facilities  over  five 
and ten  year  periods, wi th related  graphs. 
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Com pliance Section - This section includes the auditor's report on compliance 
and on in tern al control over finan cial rep orting, based on th eir audit of the 
fin an cial statem ents. 

The year 2003 presented a challenge in  term s of total cargo m ovem en t and th e resulting revenue 
gen erated . W hile overall tonnage was  rep ortedly down by 12 %  from  th e previous year, 
oper atin g revenue rem ained  essentially unchanged  during this period. Once again, we believe 
th e contin ued  stren gth of th e dollar against foreign curren cy an d high natural gas prices worked 
in tan dem  to limit th e production an d export of finished  products within th e state's 
m anufacturing sector. M an y ar ea chem ical plants did not in creas e production while oth er s 
actually ceased oper ating altogeth er . Th e in dustries that were heavily dep en dent on natural gas 
for their production did not,fare well. N on-operatin g in co m e was  also less th an  the previous year 
due to an over all decline in  value within th e port's in vestm ent portfolio. Fortunately, 
maintaining diversified  operations at the port continued to be a strength. W hile two of the major 
facilities experienced  decreases from  th e previ ous year, tw o oth er s in creas ed cargo m ovem en t, 
whi ch resulted  in  revenue gains from  th eir operations. 

A s previ ous ly m entioned, operatin g reven ue for 2003 was alm ost equivalen t to 2002. It chan ged  
from $4,492,895 in 2002 to $4,448,668 in 2003. Total reven ue was recorded  at $4,836,153, 
whi ch was  8.4%  below th e sam e period in  2002. The prim ary reason for th e dec rease was  
attributed  to a decline in fixed  inco me securities. Net as sets increased by $3,988,681 as a result 
of th e port's capital improvemen t program , bringing total net assets to $62,748,400 at year-end. 

Factors related  to the local, national and in ternational econom y played, an d will continue to play, 
a significan t role in our level of achievem ent. As conditions in th e econom y im prove, so will our  
ability to increas e cargo volum e an d our em phas is on eco nomic developm ent. 

Th e co mmission and staff continue to be proactive in adjusting to chan ges within the indus try. 
M uch em phasis and finan cial comm itm en t has  been placed towar d infras tructure im provem en ts, 
construction of new facilities and prom otin g new busin ess. As staff  m aintains a focus  on 
diver sification and gr owth, it wi ll work to pro vi de opportunities an d incentives so that new 

businesses wi ll have the ability to locate an d operate within the port's jurisdiction. In so doing, 
thi s will open a window of opportunity to increas e th e port's reven ue bas e and gen era te a gr eater 
eco nomic benefit to the citizens of th e state. 

M A JO R  IN ITIATIV ES 

Th e year 2003 was a continuum  of em phasis an d focus. Several ongoing co nstruction projects 
were completed by the end of the year. Th e new sugar warehouse project was completed an d 
product was stored there. Th e new security entrance an d road reconstruction project was 
com pleted  as well. M axim um  progr ess had been m ade on th e cargo dock pile rehabilitation 

project wi th expected completion sometime in 2004. 
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Since the port is ideally located for th e m ovem ent of containers by barge, further developm ent of 
the Inland Rivers M arine Term inal allowed  for containers to be m oved via th e Gulf l.nter coastal 
Canal and th e M ississippi Ri ver to Houston an d N ew Orleans. This new delivery service is 
expected to complem ent th e operation of a new 10-acre container storage yard being leased to 
Dow Chem ical Com pany. Curren t an d future developm ent of this new in term odal facility will 

en able bulk, break-bulk, co ntainerized , and project cargo to be transferred by truck, rail, or barge. 

Additional protective m easures were im plem en ted on port property in  2003. A guar ded  front 
security gate an d video cameras were installed  at the m ain en tran ce to port facilities. The port 
was also awarded a 1.6 million dollar federal security gran t to allow for additional fen cing an d 
oth er  protective equipm en t. A s this an d oth er fundin g is m ade available, com pr ehen sive plan s 
will add new m eaning to port security. Th e combined local an d national effort wi ll provide 
greater  as sur an ce th at facilities, cargo an d life will be better  protected  within th e port ar ea. 

FINANCIAL CONO m on 

As dem onsWated by th e statem en ts an d sched ules included  in the financial section of this report, the 
Comm ission co ntinues to be in sound finan cial co ndition. 

REPO RTING  ENTITY 

Th e Greater  Baton Rouge Port Com m ission was established  by virtue of A ct 9 of th e Regular 
Session of the 1952 Legislature of Louisian a, adopted  as  an  am en dm en t to th e Constitution of 

Louisiana as Section 29, Article VI thereof, an d was created as an  Executive Department (now a 
political subdivision) of the State of Louisiana. The Commission is governed  by a board of 

an d has the power and authority to regu late the co mmerce and traffi c wi thin certain 
boundaries of the State of Lo uisian a an d has charge of and administers public wharves, docks, 
sheds, lan dings an d oth er structures useful for th e co mm erce of th e port area. 

FINAN CIAL REPO RTING  

Th e financial statem ents of th e Comm ission have been prepared  in  accordance with  gen erally 
accep ted  accountin g principles applicable to governm en ts and to the guidelin es set forth in  the 

industry audit gu ide, Audits of State and Local Governmental Units. Th e Gr eater Baton Rouge Port 
Comm ission adopted  th e provisions of Govern m ental Acco un tin g Standards Board Statem en t No. 
34, Basic Financial Statements - and M anagement's D iscussion and Analysis - For State and 
Local Governments; Statem ent No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and M anagement's 
D iscussion and Ana lysis - For State and Local Govern ments. 

Th e Comm ission is a co m ponen t unit of th e State of Louisiana and in cludes only th e fin ancial 
inform ation of this com ponent unit. 

FUND DESCR1F rlON 
Th e Gr eater Baton Rouge Port Comm ission has only one fund to which all accounts ar e organized  
and accounted for as a sin gle entity. This fund is operated  as  an  Enterprise Fun d. Enterprise Fun ds 
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are used to acco unt for operations that are financed  and operated  in a m anner similar to private 
business enterprises, where the inten t of the governing body is that costs (expenses, including 
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public be financed or recovered 
prim arily through user charges. 

The m an agem en t of the Comm ission is res ponsible for establishing an d m aintaining internal 

controls over its operations. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates an d judgments by 
m anagem en t ar e required  to assess th e expec ted ben efits and related co sts of internal control 

policies and procedures. The objectives of internal controls are to provide managem ent with 
reasonable, but not absolute, as suran ce that as sets are safeguarded  against loss fxom  unauth orized 
us e or disp osition, an d that transactions  are executed in acco rdance with  m anagem en t's 
auth orization an d recorded  properly to permit th e prep aration of fin an cial statem en ts in  accordance 
wi th gen erally acce pted  accoun ting principles. Th e concept of reasonab le assurance  recognizes th at 
the co sts of a control should not exce ed  the ben efits likely to be derived  an d th at th e evaluation of 

the costs and ben efits requires estimates an d judgm ents by man agem ent. 

BUD G ETAR Y CO NTR O L 

The Comm ission staff prep ares an  annual Operations an d M ainten an ce budget that is bas ed on 
expected  co llections  an d expen ditures, for the fiscal year . Th e Board of Comm issioners approves 
an d adopts the budget, which co nstitutes  th e authority of the Comm ission to in cur liabilities  an d 

authorize projected exp en ditures from the respective budgeted categories. 

In addition, th e Comm ission approves  certain expen ses  from  th e gen eral fund account for 
m aintenance of existing facilities  an d for new co nstruction, on an  as  needed bas is. 

M onthly fin an cial statem en ts, which co m pare actual performance wi th  budget, are presen ted to th e 
Comm ission for review of th e financial status an d to m easur e th e effectiven ess of th e budgetary 
controls. 

DEBT AD M INISTRATIO N 

Th e Com m ission is auth orized by the state legislature to have outstan ding in debtedness of up to 
$100,000,000 eviden ced by negotiable bonds or notes. 

Th e Greater Baton Rouge Port Commission has outstan ding Bond indebtedness of $8,019,954 
through a 1999A an d 1999B Series issue. Th ese bonds m ature serially to th e year 2019. Th e 
bonds are limited  an d special obligations payable solely from  lawfully available funds an d certain 
funds held by th e Trustee pursuant to th e Trust In den ture. No oth er as sets are available for 
paym en t of th e principal of, or in teres t on, th e Bonds. 



CASH  M AN A G EM ENT 

Existing Louisiana state statutes provide the Greater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission with legal 
auth ority to promulgate an d im plem ent reasonable standards for its cash m anagem en t an d 
investm ent operations. Subsequently, in 1993 th e Commission adopted a Statemen t of Inves tmen t 
an d Cash M anagem en t Gui delines an d Procedures. 

The purpose of this statem ent is to iden tify policies an d proced ures  th at provide for a prudent an d 
system atic approach to th e investm en t an d cash m anagem en t activi ties of th e Comm ission, 
in cluding th e active m anagem en t of th e Comm ission's longer term  portfolios an d cas h 

managemen t, projections of cash flow, control ~of disbursem ents an d co st effective services from 
bank an d financial services institutions. 

RISK  M ANAG EM ENT 

The Gr eater Baton Rouge Port Comm ission is co nstan tly reviewing its property an d liability 
coverage and is co operating with  its insuran ce underwriters in  a program  of risk red uction. The 
Com m ission req uires its tenants an d subcontractors to provide co m prehensive coverage for all areas 
of risk, inclusive of worker's co mpensation insur an ce. In  addition, the Comm ission offers 
em ployee safety ed ucation program s to reduce  claim s for W orker's Com pen sation. 

Program s for em ployee  health  an d life insurance  are provided  through th e State of Louisian a. Th e 
state provides life an d health coverage to its em ployees , th eir dependen ts an d retirees . Th e 
Com m ission pays 100%  for em ployees an d up to 75%  of costs for each eligible retiree who 
participates in  th e program . Other supplem en tal insurance s are available to em ployees. Such 
co verage's are optional and are paid en tirely by th e in divi duals electin g to carry th em . 

IND EPEND ENT AUD IT 

State statutes require an  annual audit by either an  independen t certified  public accoun tan t or th e 

Legislative Auditor. The Louisiana Legislative Auditor elected  to contract this service to the 
indepen den t CPA firm , Hannis T. Bour geois, LLP, for the audit years 2002-2004. The auditor's 
report on th e com ponent unit financial statem en ts is in cluded in  the finan cial section of this rep ort. 

A W ARD S 

Th e Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievem ent for 
Exce llence in Fin ancial Rep orting to th e Port Co m m ission for its com prehensive annual financial 
report for th e year en ded Decem ber  31, 2002. This w as th e ninth  consecutive year th e Port 

Commission received  this prestigious award. To be awarded  a Certificate of Achievem ent, the Port 
Commission published an  easily read able an d efficiently organized  com prehensive annual fin an cial 

rep ort. This rep ort satisfied both gen erally accepted accoun ting principles and applicable legal 
requirem en ts . 
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A Certificate of Achievem ent is valid for a period of one year only. W e believe that our current 
com prehensive annual financial report continues to m eet th e Certificate of Achi evem ent Program 's 
requirem ents, and we are submitting it to th e GFOA to determ ine its eligibility for an oth er 
certificate. 

A CK NO 

The preparation of this report could not have been acco m plished without th e efficien t an d dedicated  
efforts of th e staff of th e finance/administration dep artm en t su pport of th e executive dep artm en t an d 

the personnel of the firm, Hannis T. Bourgeois, LLP. Special recognition is given to Brad Stueber, 
Accountant Administrator, an d Linda Chapm an, Adm inistrative Specialist, for th eir extraordinary 
efforts. 

Respectfully su bmi tted, 

Alfred D . Starns 
Director Finan ce  an d Administration 
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John Polansky, Jr., P.E. 
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February 23, 2004 

G reater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission 
State of Louisiana 
Port Allen, Louisiana 

1175 Del Este Avenue, Suite B 
Denham Springs, L& 70726 

www.htbcpa.com 

W e have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Greater Baton Rouge Port 
Com m ission, a component unit of the State of Lo uisian a, as of and for the years ended 
December  31, 2003 an d 2002, as  listed  in th e foregoing table of contents. These basic finan cial 
statem en ts

, 
are the responsibility of the m an agemen t of the Greater  Baton Rouge Port 

commission. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic firmneial statements 
bas ed  on our audits. 

W e co nducted our  audits in accordan ce with auditing standards gen er ally accepted in th e United  
States of Am eriea  and th e standards applicable to financial audits contained  in  Government 
Auditing Standards, issued  by the Comptroller General of th e Uni ted  States . Those standards 
require that we plan and perform  the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statem ents are free of material misstatem~,-nt. An audit includes exarn~ning, on a test 
bas is, evidence  supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statem en ts. An audit also 
includes asses sing th e accoun ting principles  used and significant es tim ates m ade by m anagem en t, 
as w ell as evaluating the overall fin ancial statem en t presen tation. W e believe th at our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our  opinion. 

In our opinion, the basic financial statem ents present fairly, in  all m aterial respects, th e financial 
position of th e Greater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission, as of Dece mber  31, 2003 and 2002, and 
the results of its operations an d its cash flows of its enterprise fund for the years th ou ~aded , in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites State, s Of America . 

In  aeeordanea  wi th  Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued  a report dated 
February 23, 2004, on our consideration of the Greater Baton Rouge Port Com. m i~ ion's intern al 
co ntrol over financial r~ orfing and our tests of its co mplien ea  wi th certain provisions  of laws, 
regulations, and contracts. That repo rt is an in tegral part of an audit perform ed  in accordance 
with Go vernment Auditing Standards and should be read in co njun ction wi th this report in 
co ns idering the results of our audit. 
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The M anagem ent's Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 through 18 is not a required part of th e 
basic finan cial statem ents but are supplem en tary inform ation required by the Govem rnen tal 
Accounting Standards Boar d. W e have applied  certain lim ited proced ures, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of m an agem ent regarding th e m ethods of m easur em en t and pr esen tation 
of the supplem entary inform ation. How ever, we did not audit th e in form ation and express no 
opinion on it. 

Our  audits wer e m ade for thepurpose of form ing an opinion on the basic fin an cial statem ents 
taken  as  a whole. Th e acco m pan ying supplem en tal inform ation schedules an d "Annual Fin an cial 
Report" as  req uired  by th e Louisian a Division of Adm ini stration listed in  th e table of contents are 
presented for the purpose of additional analysis and ar e not a required  part of the bas ic financial 

statem ents of the Greater Baton Rouge Port Commission. Such inform ation has been subjected 
to th e auditing proced ur es applied in the audit of the bas ic fin an cial statem ents and, in our 
opini on, such inform ation is fairly stated in  all m aterial respects in relation to th e basic fin an cial 
statem en ts tak en  as a whole. The introductory section and th e statistical section listed in th e 
table of contents w ere not audited by us, and, accordin gly, we do not expr ess an opinion on th em . 

Respectfully subm itted , 
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M ANAGEM ENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The M anagement's Discussion and Analysis of the Greater Baton Rouge Port Commission 
performance presents a narrative overview an d analysis of th e port's financial activities for th e 
year ended Dece mber 31, 2003. The report is based  on twelve month s activities, resulting 
changes, and currently known facts. Please read this document in conjunction with the 
additional information contained  in the transmittal letter  presented  on pages 3 - 8 and th e port's 
financial statements, which begin on pag e 12. 

The 2002 annual financial report did not include comparative analysis as  it was  th e first tw elve- 
m onth period fonowing a change in fiscal year. The previous report included  data fi'om a 
fourteen-month  fiscal period. Year 2003 and subsequent years will include a comparative 
analysis. 

FINAN CIAL ~ G~ JG~ S 

* The Gr eater Baton Kouge Port Commission's as sets increas ed  modestly during 2003. 
Total net assets increased $3,988,681 above the previous year. This represents an 
increase in total net assets of approximately 6.8% . 

* During the tw elve-month period, operating expen se exce eded  operating revenue by 

$1,640,359. Total net non-operating revenue was $(75,458). When co mbined, operating 
and non-operating performance measures indicate a net loss of $1,715,817. Ope rating 
expenses included th e followi ng: depreciation recorded  at $2,063,706, represen ting 
33.9%  of th e total, administrative expenses $2,001,838, or 32.9% an d direct expenses 
$2,023,483, at 33.2% . 

* The unrestricted investment portfolio was valued  at $11,887,222 at th e end of the year 

O VERVIEW  O F TH E FINANCIAL STA TEM ENTS 

Required supplementary information 
(other than MD&A) 
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The preceding graphic illustrates the minimum requirem ents for Special Purpose Governments 
Engaged in Business-Type Activities established by Go vernmental Acco unfmg Standards Board 
Staternent 34, Basic Fin.~ncial Statements---and lkffans~ernenCs Discussion an d Analysis-- for 

Th ese financial statements consist of three sections - M anagem en t's Di scu ssion and Analysis 

(this section), the basic financial statements (including the notes to the financial statements), and 
required  supplem en tary information. 

Basic Financial Statem ents 

Th e bas ic financial statem ents present information for the Greater Baton Rouge Port 
Commission as a whole, in a format designed to wake the statements easier for th e rea der to 
understand. The statem ents in this section inelude th e Balance Sheet, th e Statement of 
Reven ues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets; an d the Statemen t of Cash Flows. 

Th e Balance Sheet (pages 19 - 20) presents the current and long-term portions of assets and 
liabt~ties separately. Th e differen ce b~tween total assets and total liabilities is net assets and 
may provide a useful indicator of whether th e financial position of th e port commission is 

improving or deteriorating. Net assets increased in 2003. 

The following contains conden sed Balan ce Sheet information at December 31, 2002 and 2003. 

' 

. 
2003 2002 

: -.C~  ~ -~ :- .. : . : 5:~,o01,3S6~. ., ~6,895:90 
:.- ". Total assets . :.. . 73,669963.'. " : 69,983,-'-~93~  
: : Currem and other liabilities 3:21;609 3,199,677 

Long4erm debt outstanding 7,699,954 . 
' 8,024,539 

TOtal liabilities 10,921,563 11,224,216 
N et assets: 

Inv~ ed  in capital assets, net ofdebt  47,273,121 41,929,688 

Restricted 3,588,057 3,671,871 

Total net assets 

11,887,222 
$ 62,748,400 

_  

13.158.160 
$ 58.759,719 
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The Cash Flow Statement (pages 22 - 23) presents information showing how the port 
commission's cash changed as a result of current year operations. The cash flow statement is 

prepared using the direct method and includes the reconciliation of operating income 0oss) to net 
cash provided (used) by operating activities (indirect method) as required by GASB 34. 

FINANCIAL AN ALYSIS OF THE ENTITY 

Restricted  net as sets represent th ose assets th at are not available for spending as  a result of 
legislative req uiremen ts, donor agreem ents and grant requirem ents. Conversely, unrestricted net 
assets are those that do not have any limitations on wha t th ese amounts may be used for. 

Net assets of the Greater Baton Rouge Port Commission increased by $3,988,681 from 
December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003. One of the major causes of this increase is from 
additional contributed capital for various capital projects that were in progress during the period. 

The following is a conden se d Statement of Reven ues, Expenses, an d Changes in Net Assets for 
th e twelve-m onth  periods ended December 31, 2002 and 2003. 

Operating reveui/eai. "~ . 
~ 

i,051,943 . :.$ 1,054,439 :;Do~kage~ d:wharfage . 
. : 

'
~ . $ 

~Rentais ~ : ~ ~ " " i.992,268~i:ii~ ." "2~183,799 
"

: StOrage ii:.iii I:~' "" 2~232 :."=- : ~:" 5,767 
" Other : , li402~225 : 1,~ 890__  
" Total OPerating Revenues - 4,448,'668::'$ : : 4

,492,895 

Operating expenses: 
Direot " " " 2,023,483 - 1,862,444 
Administrative ' ' : 2

,001,838 . 1,987,163' 

D epreciation 
" :

6,089,02,7,:  ~ 5,855,818 Total Operating Expenses - 2,063,706 : ::2,006,21i 

Opeiating income0oss) (1,640.359) (1.362.923) 
Non-operating revenues(expenses) 

Income(loss) before contributions 
Capital Contributions 

Net increase(decrease) in net assets 
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(1,715,817) 
5.704.498 

$ 3.988.681 $ 6.155,702 



The Greater Baton Rouge Port Commission's operating revenues decreased by $44,227 and the 
total cost of programs and s~ rice s increased  by $233,209, as co mpared to the previous twelve 
m onth period. Revenue increases w ere reco rded in rail switching rail storage an d miscellan eous 
cargo categories. The inoreases were offset by dec reas es in charges for vessel calls, wharfage 
an d rental inco me. Increas ed costs were reco rded in depreciation, property an d liability 
insuran ce, an d payroll related expense categories. 

CAPITAL A SSET AND  DEBT ADM INISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of 2002 an d 2003, the Port Commission had $89,310,495 an d $96,449,599 invested  in 
a broad range of capital as sets, including land, railroad tracks and yards, road ways and 

structures, buildings and structures, equipment, furnishings an d tran sportation equipment (See 
following Table). This am ount represems a net increase (including additions and deductions) of 
$7,892,901 over last period. 

-: 2003 2002 

i Land. ' $ ~ 31742,i43 $ 3,74211~43' 
!: Buiidingsandimprovements . 76,739~275 '. 75,676,854 
Equipment ~ :" " 4,743,76~5 '. /:4,588,677 

318 
_  

5 302 821 

Totals $ 96~449,601 $ 89,310,495 

Additions this year include 

* Ern est W ilson Drive 
~ Dow Chemical Container Yard 
~ Sugar Storage Facility & Structure 
. Inlan d River Terminal Rail Spur 
~ Tra ck W eigh Scale 
~ Other In-Progr ess 

$ 2,858,618 
$ 2,518,975 
$ 4,889,057 
$ 544,004 
$ 75,000 
$ 7,138,442 

Additional information concerning Capital Asset activity is disclosed on pages 30 an d 31 of th e 
Notes To The Financial Statements. 
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G reater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission 
State of Louisiana 

BALAN CE SH EETS 

as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 

ASSETS 

Current A ssets: 
Cas h and Cash Equivalents 
Investm ents 
Receivables: 

Trade Accounts (Net of AUowance for Uncollectible 
Accounts of $2,100 and $1,800 in 2003 an d 2002) 

Due From  Other Governm ents 
A ccrued In terest Receivable 
Contract Receivable - Current 
Prepaid Expenses 

Total Current A ssets 

N oneurrent A ssets: 
Res tricted A ssets: 
Cas h an d Cash Equivalen ts 
In vestm ents 
Accrued Interest Receivable 

Total Restricted A ssets 

Capital Assets: 
Land and Constru ction in Progress 
Other Capital Assets, N et of Accum ulated Depreciation 

Total Capital A ssets 

Other Assets: 
Contract Receivable - N et of Current Portion 
Unam ortized Debt Issue Costs 

Total Oth er Assets 

Total N oncurreut Assets 

Total A ssets 

The accom pan ying notes are an  integral part of this statem ent. 
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Statem ent A 

"2003 2002 

1,049,159 
12,310,430 

553,025 
1,402,932 

75,316 
252,144 
112,339 

15,755,345 

69,809 
4,056,025 

11,470 

$ 780,194 
13,935,387 

388,635 
1,195,030 
111,070 
238,999 
185,033 

"16,834,348 

71,110 
4,127,093 

11,479 

4,137,304 4,209,673 

10,039,646 

41261,710 
14,274,248 

32,621,242 

52,001,356 46,895,490 

1,527,055 
248,903 

1,775,958 

57,914,618 

$73,669,963 

1,779,199 
265,225 

2,044,424 

53,149,587 

$ 69,983,935 



LIABIL ITIES AND NET ASSETS 
~

2003 

Current Liabilities: 
Payable from  Unrestricted A ssets 
A ccounts Payable 
Construction Contracts Payable 
Other A ccrued Liabilities 
R entals Received in A dvance 

Total Current Liabilities-Payable from 
Unr estricted Assets 

Payable from  Restricted Assets: 
Bonds Payable - Current Portion 
A ccru ed Bond Interest 
U nredeem ed Bonds and Coupons 

Total Current Liabilities-Payable from 
Restricted A ssets 

Total Current Liabilities 

N oneurrent Liabilities: 
Long-term  D ebt 
Deferred Am ount on Refunding 

Total N oncurrent Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

N et A ssets : 
In vested in Capital A ssets, N et of Related Debt 
Restricted for: 

Capital Projects 
D ebt Service 

Unrestricted 

Total N et Assets 

Total Liabilities and N et A ssets 
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$ 269,574 
1,606,001 
455,411 
352,846 

Statem entA  

(Continued) 

$ 318,651 
1,642,128 
386,973 
325,594 

2,683,832 2,673,346 

320,000 
147,968 
69,809 

537,777 

3,221,609 

7,699,954 

300,000 
155,221 
71,110 

526,331 

3,199,677 

8,028,803 

(4,264) 

10,921,563 11,224,216 

47,273,121 41,929,688 

3,291,718 
296,339 

11,887,222 

62,748,400 

3,358,737 
313,134 

13,158,160 

58,759,719 

$ 73,669,963 $ 69,983,935 
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G reater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission 
State of Louisiana 

Statem ent B 

S EN SES
, AND CHAN GES IN N ET 

For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 

O perating Revenues: 
Dockage an d W harfage 
Rentals 
Storage 
Other 

Total Operating Revenues 

O perating Expenses: 
D irect 
A dm inistrative 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Loss 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Investm ent Incom e 

Interest Expense 
Gain on Sale of Fixed A ssets 
Am ortization of Debt Issue

, Bond Prem ium  and Deferred 
Refunding, N et 

Trustee's Fees 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Loss Before Contributions 

Capital Contributions 

Change in N et A ssets 

Total Net Assets - Beginning of Y ear 

Total N et Assets - End of Y ear 

The accom pan ying notes are an  integral part of this statem en t 
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2003 2002 

$ ],051,943 $ 1,054,439 
1,992,268 

2,232 
1,402,225 

2,183,799 
5,767 

1,248,890 

4,448,668 4,492,895 

2,023,483 
2,001,838 
2,063,706 

6,089,027 

(1,640,359) 

377,535 

(447,532) 
9,950 

(I 1,736) 
(3,675) 

1,862,444  
1,987,163 
2,006,211 

5.855.818 

(1,362,923) 

787,047 

(469,448) 
123 

(17,706) 
(3,240) 

(75,458) 296,776 

(1,715,817) 

5,704,498 

(1,066,147) 

7,221,849 

3,988,681 6,155,702 

58,759,719 

$ 62,748,400 $ 58,759,7t9 



Greater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission 
State of Louisiana 

For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 

Cash Flow s from  O perating A ctivities: 
Cash Rec eived from  Custom ers 
Cas h Paym ents to Suppliers for Goods an d Services 
Cash Paym ents to Employees for Services 

Other Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Net Cash Provided by Op erating Activities 

Cash Fl ows from  Capital and R elated Fin an cing Activi ties: 
Principal Paid on Bonds 
Inter est Paid on Bond M aturities  
A cquisition/Construction of Capital Assets 
Proceeds fi'om  Sale of Capital Assets 
Capital Contributions 

Net Cash Used  in Capital and Related  
Fin an cing Activi ties 

Cash Flow s from  Investing A ctivi ties: 
Purchases of In ves tm ent Securities 
Proceeds from  Calls an d M aturities of In ves tm ent Securities 
Interest an d Dividends Earned on Investm ent Securities 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 

Net Increase in  Cash and Cas h Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 

Statem ent C 

"

2003 2002 

$ 4,72~340 
(2,522,513) 
(1,904,998) 
284,379 

586,208 

(300,000) 
(454,786) 

(7,173,082) 
13,460 

,, 5,496,596 

$ 5,097,269 
(2,672,089) 
(1,406,411) 
53..4,938 

1,553,707 

(285,00o) 
(477,013) 

(7,912,230) 
123 

6,870,281 

(2,417,812) (1,803,839) 

0,167,726) 
4,859,303 
407,691 

(13,131,423) 
13,295,725 

691,433 

267,664 605,603 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of the Year $ 1,I 18,968 $ 851
,304 
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G reater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission 
State of Louisiana 

STATEM EN TS OF CA SH FLOW S - CON TINU ED 

For the years ended Decem ber 31, 2003 and 2002 

Statem ent C 

(Continued) 

R econciliation of O perating Loss to N et Cash Provided 
by O perating Activities: 

Operating Loss $ (1,640,359) $(1,362,923) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities: 
Am ortization of D ebt Issue Costs 
D epreciation 

(Gain) Less on Sale of Fixed Assets 

Changes in Unrestricted  Assets an d Liabilities: 

(Increase) Decrease in Trade Accounts Receivable 
(Increase) Decrease in Contract Receivable 
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Construction Contracts Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Other Accrued Liabilities 
Increase (Decrease) in Rentals Received  in Advance 

Chan ges in Restricted Liabilities - Unr edeem ed 
Bonds and Coupons 

N et Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

16,322 
2,063,706 

(9,950) 

(164,390) 
238,999 
72,694 

(49,076) 
(36,127) 
68,438 
27,252 

(1,301) 

$ 586,208 

Schedule of N oncash Investing, Capital and Financing A ctivities: 

16,322 
2,006,211 

(123) 

152,926 
226,539 

(77,855) 
94,469 
472,094 
67,988 

(13,123) 

(28,818) 

$ 1,553,707 

Change in Unrealized (Gain) Loss on Investments $ 191,215 $ (117,278) 

Fixed Assets Acquired in Exchan ge for Lease Termination $ (135,655) $ (177,087) 

Capital Contribution Relating to th e Fixed Assets 
Acquired in Exchan ge for Lease Termination $ 135,655 $ 177,087 

The accom pan ying notes are an integral part of this statem ent 
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G reater Baton R ouge Port Com m ission 
State of Louisiana 

1. Sum m ary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A . Scope of Reporting Entity 

The Greater Baton Rouge Port Commission (the Port Commission) was established by 
virtue of Act 9 of the Regular Session of the 1952 Legislature of Louisiana, adopted  as  an 
am endm en t to th e Constitution of Louisiana as Section 29, Article VI, th ereof, and was 
created as an  Executive Department (now a political subdivision) of the State of 
Louisiana. The Port Commission is governed by a board of commissioner s and has th e 
power an d authority to regulate th e co mm erce an d a-aflic within certain boundaries of the 
State of Lo uisian a an d have charge of and administer public wharves, docks, shed s, and 
lan dings an d other  structures useful for th e com m erce of the port ar ea. 

As the govern ing auth ority of the state, for reporting purposes, th e State of Lo uisian a is 

the financial reporting entity. Th e financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary 
government (state), (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable, an d (c) other organizations for which the nature an d significan ce of their 
relationship wi th th e prim ary governm en t are such th at exehi sion would cause the 
reporting en tit-y's finan cial statem en ts to be m isleading or incomplete. 

Th e Port Comm ission is co nsidered  a componen t unit of the State of Lo uisian a because 
th e state has fin an cial accoun tability over th e Port Com mission in th at th e governor 
appoints all the com m ission m embers an d can  im pose hi s will on th e Port Comm ission. 
The accom pan ying finan cial statem ents present inform ation only on the funds m aintained 
by the Port Comm ission an d do not present inform ation on th e state, the gen eral 
governm ent services provided  by th at governm ental unit, or the oth er governm en tal units 
that com prise the fin an cial reporting entity. 

B. M easurem ent Focus and Basis of Accounting 

M easurem ent Focus - On Novem ber 1, 2000, th e Port Comm ission adopted th e 
provisions of Statem en t No. 34 ("Statem ent 34") of the Governmen tal Accounting 
Stan dards Boar d "Basic Financial Statements - and M anagement's D iscussion and 

Analysis -for State and Local Government." Statem ent 34 established stan dards for 
external finan cial reporting for all state and local governm ental entities which in cludes a 
statem ent of net assets, a statem ent of activities an d chan ges in net as sets an d a statem ent 
of cas h flows. 
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The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resoumes" m easurem ent focus. The 

accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating 
income, chan ges in net assets (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All 
assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are 
rep orted . Proprietary fund equity is classified  as  net as sets. 

Basis of Accounting - Th e Port Comm ission uses the accrual bas is of accounting. 
Revenues are recognized  when th ey ar e earned, an d expenses  are recognized  at th e tim e 
liabilities are in curred or eco nom ic as set us ed . 

Under the provisions of GASB Statement 20, "Accoun ting ~d Financial Reporting for 
Proprietary Fun d Accoun ting," the Port Comm ission follows pronouncem en ts of the 
GASB an d has elected not to follow Finan cial Accoun ting Stan dards Board guidan ce 
issued  subsequent to N ovember  30, 1989. 

C. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

Th e Port Comm ission uses th e following budgetary practices: 

The Port Comm ission prepares th e annual Operations and M aintenan ce budget for 
internal m anagem en t purposes, an d the budget is based on what is expected  to be 
co llected during the fiscal year. The budget is approved  by the Board of 
Comm issioners. Th e adopted  budget constitutes th e auth ority of the Port 
Com m ission to incur liabilities and auth orize expenses from  the respective 
budgeted funds. In addition, certain expenses are approved m onthly by th e Board 
before paym ent from the General Fund budget. Th e Port Comm ission is not 
required  to present a budget comparison in its finan cial statem en ts. 

D. A ssets, Liabilities, and N et Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investm ents - Cash in cludes cash on hand, dem and 
deposits, interest-bearing dem an d dep osits, an d cash in trust accoun ts. Cash equivalen ts 
include am ounts in  tim e certificates of deposits. Under state law , the Port Com m ission 
m ay dep osit funds within a fiscal agent bank organ ized under the laws of the State of 
Louisian a, the laws of any other state in  the Union, or the laws of the United States. 
Furtherm ore, the Port Comm ission m ay invest in certificates of deposit of state banks 
organized under Lo uisiana law and national banks having their principal offices in 
Louisian a. Nonparticipating in vestm ent contracts, generally certificates of dep osit with a 
m aturity of one year  or less, are reported at cost. 

Under state law, th e Port Com m ission is authorized  to invest funds in direct U .S. 
Treas ury obligations . These inves tm ents are U.S. Treasury an d oth er U.S. governm ental 
en tities securities with m aturities of over one year at the tim e of pur e 

,
base. The securities 

are rep orted  at fair value using current quoted m arket prices or are as signed a value based 
on Melds currently available on similar securities from the same issuers. In addition, the 
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Port Comm ission is authorized  to invest in the Louisiana Asset M anagem ent Pool, Inc. 

(LAMP), a nonprofit corperafion formed by an initiative of the state lreasurer and 
organized under the laws of th e State of Lo ui siana, which operates th e investment pool. 
The Port Comm ission's investm en t in LAM P is rep orted  at fair value. 

Receivables - Receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end an d not yet rece ived . 
All known unco llectible accounts have been  rem oved  from  rec~vables  and an allowan ce 
has been m ade for doubtful accoun ts based  on a pea'indic aging of accoun ts receivable. 

Th e majority of receivables consist of dockag~wharfage and rentals. 

Capital Assets - Property an d equipm en t are stated at hi st6rical co st. Public dom ain 

("infrastructure") gen eral fixed assets including roads, surface drainage, railroad tracks 
and yards are capitalized  along with  oth er fixed as sets. The Port Com m ission generally 
capitalizes as sets with  a cost of $500 or m ore. The costs of norm al m ainten ance and 
repairs that do not ad d to the asset value or m aterially exten d useful lives ar e not 
capitalized . W hen  capital as sets are disposed, th e cost, an d applicable accum ulated  
depreciation are rem oved from  th e respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is 
recorded in oper ations. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over th e 
estim ated  useful lives of th e related  as sets as shown  below: 

Railroad tracks and yards 
Roadw ays and surface drainage 
Buildin gs and structures 
Equipm ent 
O ffi ce furniture and fixtures 
Transportation equipm ent 

Y ears 
20 to 40 
5 t0 33 
5 to 40 
5 to 25 
3 to 10 
3 to 5 

Restricted Assets - Restricted  as sets include cash an d investm en ts of th e pro prietary fund 
that are legally restricted as to their use. The prim ary restricted as sets are related to 
unspen t bond proce eds. 

Lease Revenue Recognition - Lease rentals, as further explained in note 9, are accounted 
for un der th e oper ating m ethod whereby revenue is recognized  currently as rentals 
beco m e due. 

Unam ortized Debt Issue Expenses and Bond Prem ium  - Debt expense an d bond 
prem ium , incurred in connection wi th the issuance of the bonds, ar e am ortized usin g the 
bonds outstanding m eth od over  th e term  of th e bonds. 

Com pensated Absences - Employees  accrue an d accum ulate annual an d sick leave at 
varying rates in  accordan ce with state law based on full-tim e service. The leave is 
acc um ulated w ith out lim itation. Upon separ ation of em ploym ent, em ployees or their 
heirs are compensated for acc um ulated annual leave not to exceed  300 hours at their 
current rate of pay. Unused annual leave in excess of 300 hour s plu~ un used sick leave 
are used  to com pute retirem ent benefits. Th e cost of leave privileges, computed in 
acc ordance with GASB Codifica tion Section C60, is recognized as a current year expense 
when th e leave is earned. Accrued compensated absences  ar e included in Oth er Accrued 
Liabilities on th e Balance Sheet. 

-26- 



Equity Classifications - Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three 

com ponents: 

~ Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This component of net assets co nsists 
of capital as sets, including restricted capital as sets, net of accum ulated  depredation 
and red uced by the outstanding balan ces of an y bonds, m ortgages, notes, or other 
borrowings th at are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or im provem en ts of 
th ose assets. If th ere ar e significan t unspent related  debt proceeds at year-end, th e 
portion of th e debt attributable to th e unspent proceeds ar e not included in th e 
calculation of invested  in capital assets, net of related debt. Rath er, th at portion of th e 
debt is included in th e sam e net assets com ponen t as  the unspent proceeds. 

~ Restricted - This com ponent of net assets consists of constraints placed  on net asset 
use through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through  debt 
covenan ts), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 
constraints im posed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

~ Unrestricted net as sets - The components of net as set consist of net assets th at do not 
m eet th e definition of"restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt." 

E. R evenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues and expenses consists of those revenues and expenses ~at result from 
the ongoing principal operations of the Port Com m ission. Operating revenues consist 
prim arily of char ges for services. N on-oper ating revenues an d expense consist of those 
revenues an d expenses that are related to finan cing an d investing types of activities and 

result from  nonexchange tran sactions. 

W hen an expense is incurred for purposes for which there are both restricted and 
unrestricted net as sets available, it is th e Port Com m ission's policy to apply th ose 
expen ses to res tricted net assets to the extent such ar e available an d th en to unr estricted 

net assets. 

F. R eclassifieatinns 

Certain am oun ts in the 2002 financial statem ents have been reclassified to conform  with 

th e 2003 presentation. 

D eposits and Investm ents 

A . D eposits 

Th e Port Comm ission's deposits consist of th e following at December 31, 2003: 

Cash 
Certificates 
of Deposit Other Total 

Deposits in Bank Acco unts per Balance Sheet $ 1,118,968 $ $ $ 1,118,968 

Bank Balances (Category 3 Only, if Any) 
Identify Am ounts Reported as  Category 3 by 
the D escriptions Below : 
a. Uninsured  an d Uncollateralized $ 125,141 $ 

(CONTINUED) 
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$ $ 125,141 



b. Uninsured and Collateralized with 
Securities Held by the Pled ging 
Institution 

c. Uninsured  an d Collatcr alized  wi th 
Securities Held by the Pled ging 
Institution's Trust D epartm ent or 
A gen t 

Certificates  
Cash of Dep osit Other Total 

Total Category 3 Bank Balan ces $1,339,657 $ - 

-  1,214,516 

$ - $ 1,339,657 

Total Bank Balances (Regardless 
of Category) $1,643,343 $ - $ - $1,643,343 

Balan ce Sheet Classifications: 
Unrestricted A ssets: 

Cas h an d Cas h Equivalen ts 

Restricted A ssets: 
Cash an d Cash Equivalen ts 

Carrying 
Am ount 

~ Bank 
Balance 

$ 1,049,159 "$ 1,573,534 

69,809 

$ 1,118,968 

69,809 

$ 1,643,343 

The Port Comm ission's bank balances at Decem ber 31
, 2003, are categorized  into three 

levels of cred it risk. Category 1 includes bank balan ces which are insured or 
collateralized with securities held by th e Port Comm ission or its agen t in the Port 
Commission's nam e. Category 2 includes bank balan ces which are collateralized with 
securities held by th e pled ging finan cial in stitution's trust departm ent or agent in th e Port 
Com m ission's nam e. Category 3 includes bank balan ces whi ch are uncollateralized, 
including an y balan ces which are collateralized with securities held by th e pled ging 
finan cial institutions or by its trust departm en t or agent but not in th e Port Comm ission's 
nam e. At Decem ber 31, 2003, the Port Comm ission has $1,643,343 in deposits 
(collected bank balan ces). These deposits are secured from risk by $278,282 of federal 
deposit insurance and $1,214,516 of pledged  securities held by the custodial bank in th e 
nam e of the fiscal agen t bank (GASB Category 3). Th e remaining balan ce of $125,141 is 
considered uninsured an d unco llateralized. 

B. Investm ents 

Th e Port Commission's investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of 
risk assumed by the en tity at year-en d. Category 3 includes unregistered investments for 
whi ch th e fiscal agen ts an d/or th eir trust deparanents hold the securities. 
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Carrying Fair 
Category 3 Am ount V alue 

U.S. Government Securities $11,128,911 $11,128,911 $ 11,128,911 

Deposits Not Subject to Categorization: 
Louisiana A sset M anagem ent Pool 
Federated Treasury M oney M arket Fund 

Classifications on Balance Sheet: 
Um estricted 
Restricted 

1,181,519 
4,056,025 

5,237,544 

$ "16,366,455 

$ 12,310,430 
4,056,025 

1,181,519 
4,056,025 

5,237,544 

$ 16,366,455 

$ 12,310,430 
4.056.025 

$ 16,366,455 $ 16,366,455 

In accordance with GASB Codification Section I50.126, the investm ent in LAM P is not 
categorized in a risk category because th e investm ent is in a pool of ftmds m anaged by 
an other govern m ent. Only political subdivisions having contracted to participate in 

LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP 
is to provide a safe environm ent for the placem ent of public funds in short-term , high 
quality investm ents. LAM P investm ents ar e restricted to securities issued , guaran teed , or 
backed by the U .S. Treasury, the U .S. governm ent or one of its agencies, enterprises, or 
instrum entalities, as w ell as repurchase agreem ents collateralized by those securities. The 
dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of LAM P assets is restricted to not more than 
90 days, an d consists of no securities wi th a matttrity in excess of 397 days. LAM P is 
designed to be high ly liquid to give its participants immediate access to their account 
balances. The fair value of investm ents as based on quoted m arket rates  is determ ined on 
a w eekly basis to m onitor any variances betw een am ortized cost an d m ar ket value. The 
fair value is determ ined on a weekly basis by LAM P and the value of the position in th e 
external investm ent pool is th e sam e as the pool shar es. Since all investm ents are short- 
term , highly liquid securities

, the pool sponsor has not obtained an y legally binding 

gu aran tees during the period to support the value of shares. LAMP, Inc. is subject to the 
regulatory  oversight of th e state treasurer an d th e board of directors. LAM P is not 

registered  with the SEC as an  investment company. For purposes of determining 
participan ts' shares, inves tm ents ar e valued at am ortized  co st. In addition, in accordan ce 
with  GASB Codification, certain m oney m arket mutual funds such as the Federated 
Treas ury Fund, ar e not categorized because th ey are not evidenced by securities that exist 
in physical or book entry form . 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted as sets at Decem ber 31,2003 and 2002 consist of the following: 

D ebt Service 

Capital Projects 
A ccrued Inter est Receivable 
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2003 

$ 834,116 
3,291,718 

11,470 

$ 4,137,304 

2002 

$ 839,466 
3,358,737 

11,470 
$ 4,209,673 



The m ortgage indentures associated with the outstanding bonds require certain am ounts to be 
transferred at certain intervals and carried in restricted asset accounts. At D ecem ber 31, 2003, 
the net balance of these accounts was  suffi cient to m eet all requirem en ts. 

4. Contract R eceivable 

The contract receivable am ount recorded in these financial statem ents resulted Bom  a lease 
term ination agreem ent with Orm et Prim ary Alum inum  Corporation on M ay 3, 1999. Orm et 
agr eed to pay the Port Com m ission annual paym ents for the next ten  years, of a m inimum  of 
$350,000 ran ging to a maximum of $450,000 based on annual through put tonnage at the facility. 
Th e m ini m um  am oun t w as recorded as  a receivable relating to this agr eem en t in prior years. Th e 
Contract Receivable as of December 31, 2003 an d 2002 consisted of the following: 

$3,500,000 Face Am oun t, Noninterest Bearing, 
$350,000 due Annually Through 2009 

Less: Contract Installm ent 

2003 

$ .3,500,000 

(1,400,000) 

2002 

$ 3,500,000 

(1,050,000) 

Less: U nam ortized Discount Based on Im puted 

Interest of 5.5% (320,801) (431,802) 

Less: Current Portion 
1,779,199 

(252,144) 
2,018,198 

(238,999) 

$ 1,527,055 $ 1,779,199 

5. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for th e year ended Decem ber 3 I, 2003 w as as follows 

C apital A ssets N ot Being 
Depreciated: 
Land 
Oth er Construction In- 
Progress 
Total Capital A ssets N ot 
Being Depreciated 

C apital Assets Being Depreciated 
Railroad Tracks an d Y ar ds 
Roadways an d Surface Drainage 
Buildin gs an d Structures 
Equipm ent 
Office Furniture and Fixtures 

Tran sportation Equipm ent 
Total Capital A ssets 
Being Depreciated 

Balance 
January 1 
2003 

Balance 
Disposals/ Decem ber  31, 

Additions Tran sfer s 2003 

$ 3,742,t43 $ 

10,532,105 7.138.442 

$ 3,742,143 

14,274,248 7,138,442 11,373,044 10,039,646 

2,467,928 
2,834,893 
65,144,749 
3,912,i69 
477,448 
199,060 

544,004 
5,377,593 
5,309,716 
140,228 
26,215 
9,927 

12,693 
2,273 
19,011 

3,011,932 
8,212,486 
70,441,772 
4,050,124 
484,652 
208,987 

75,036,247 11,407,683 33,977 86,409,953 

(CONTINUED) 
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Balance Balan~  
January I, Disposals/ December 3 I, 
2003 Additions Transfers 2003 

Less A ccum ulated D epreciation for: 
Railroad Tracks and Yards 2,251,956 44,183 2,296,139 
Roadw ays and Surface Drainage 1,603,872 108,821 1,712,693 
Buildings and Structures 35,056,906 1,765,895 9,943 36,812,858 
Equipm ent 2,992,799 97,057 2,273 3,087,583 
Offi ce Furn iture and Fixtures 364,612 28,505 18,252 374,865 
Transportation Equipment 144,860 19,245 164,105 

Total Acc um ulated 
Deprec iation 42,415,005 2,063,706 30,468 44,448,243 

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated, N et 32,621,242 9,343,977 3,509 41,961,710 

TotalCapitalAssets, Net $46,895,490 $16,482,419 $ 11,376,553 $52,001,356 

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2002 was as follows: 

Balance 
January 1, 
2002 Additions 

Balan ce 
Disposals/ Decem ber 31, 
Transfer s 2002 

Capital A ssets N ot Being 
Depreciated: 
Land $ 3,742,143 $ $ 
Other  Construction /n-Progress 
Total Capital A ssets N ot 
Being D epreciated 

Capital A ssets Bein g D epreciated: 
Railroad Tracks an d Yards 
Roadways an d Surface Drainage 
Bui ldings an d Structures 
Equipm en t 
Office Furniture an d Fixtures 
Tran sportation Equipm ent 

Total Capital A ssets Being 
Depreciated 

Less Accum ulated D epreciation: 
Railroad Tracks and Yards 
Roadways and Surface Drainage 
Bui ldings  an d Structures 
Equipm ent 
Offi ce Furniture and Fixtures 
Transpo rtation Equipm ent 

Total A ccum ulated 
Dep reciation 

7,081,520 7,950,849 

2,467,928 
2,834,893 
64,493,661 
3,912,479 
452,534 
174,579 

652,971 

42,050 
24~481 

758,121 

-  

1,883 
310 

17,136 

$ 3,742,143 
10~532,105 

14,274,248 

2,467,928 
2,834,893 
65,144,749 
3,912,169 
477,448 
199,060 

74,336,074 719,502 19,329 75,036,247 

2,213,212 
1,481,258 
33,377,705 
2,880,674 
347,062 
128,212 

38,744 
122,614 

1,681,084 
112,435 
34,686 
16~648 

1,883 
310 

17,136 
-  

2,251,956 
1,603,872 

35,056,906 
2,992,799 
364,612 
144 ,860 

(CONTINUED) 
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Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated, Net 

Disposals/ 
Transfer s 

Balance 
December 31, 

2002 

Total Capital Assets, Net $ 40,989,471 $ 6,664,140 $ 758,121 $ 46,895,490 

Total depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 is $2,063,706 and 
$2,006,211. 

6. Long-Term  Debt 

Bonds Payable - The Port Comm ission is authorized  by the State of Louisian a to have 
outstan ding indebtedness up to $I00,000,000 evidenced by negotiable bonds or notes. 

The Greater Baton Rouge Port Comm ission's obligations under th e Series 1999A an d 1999B 
Bonds are limited an d special obligations payable solely from lawfully available fi.mds (as 
defined in the Commission's Loan Agreemen t) an d certain funds held by the Trustee pursuant to 
the Trust Indenture pursuan t to which Bonds are issued an d secured . N o other  as sets ar e 
available for paym en t of th e principal of, or interes t on, th e Bonds. 

The Bonds were issued  for the purpose of 1) with respect to the proceeds of the Series 1999A 
Bonds, curren tly refunding certain Prior Bonds and paying th e costs of certain private activity 

projects, 2) with respect to the proceeds of the Series 1999B Bonds, paying the costs of certain 
governmental projects, and 3) paying the costs of issuan ce of the bonds. 

At D ecem ber 31, 2003 an d 2002 th e outstan din g indebtedness consisted of th e followin g: 

2003 
M aturing Call 

Bond Serially Prices Interest Paya ble At Payable At 
Series To (%) Rate 1/1/03 Additions Reductions 12/31/03 

1999A 2019 
1999B 2019 
Unam ortized 
Prem ium  on 
Bonds Payable 

Deferred 
Am ount on 
Refunding 

Les s: Am ounts 
Due W ithin 
One Year Payable 
From Restricted Assets 

Am oun ts Due 
Aider One Year 

I00 - 102 
I00 - 102 

8% - 5.5% 
8% - 5.25% 

$ 5,185,000 
3,000,000 

(CONTINUED) 
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$190,000 
110,000 

$ 4,995,000 
2,890,000 

8,849 134,954 

308,849 8,019,954 

(4,264) 

(320,000) 



 

At Payable At 
Additions Reductions 12/31/02 

10 $ $ 180,000 $5,185,000 
)0 105,000 3,000,000 

13 8,850 143,803 

;3 293,850 8,328,803 

~7) (10,233) (4,264) 
;6 $~  $ 283.617 8,324,539 

(300,000) 

$ 8,024A~  

t Com m ission at the option of the Port 
inverse order of m aturity, on any interest 
:ould be redeem ed at Novem ber 1, 1999, 

t requirem ents are as follows: 

75") R4R 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009-2013 
2014-2018 
2019 

Total Principal and Interest 

Less: Portion Representing Interest 

Total Principal Outstanding at December 31, 2003 

750,472 
742,665 
744,005 
734,174 

3,667,591 
3,672,315 
729,200 

11,793,270 

(3,908,270) 

$ 7,885,000 

Prior Year Refunding - On M arch 1, 1999, the Port Commission issued $5,700,000 Series 
1999A Revenue an d Refunding Bonds and $3,300,000 Series 1999B Revenue Bonds. A portion 
of the proceeds of the Series 1999A Bonds in th e amount of $1,764,600 provided th e source of 
funds to advan ce refund th e rem aining 1962 Series E bonds payable in th e am ount of $1,730,000 
along with a prepayment premium of $34,600. In addition, $1,000,000 of the proceeds of the 
Series 1999A bonds w as used to com pletely pay-off  th e outstanding am ount of the Excess 
Revenue Certificates of Indebtedness Series 1997. Ther e are no outstan ding balances on any 
prior-year bond defeasance as of Decem ber 31, 2003 an d 2002. 
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Total debt service paym ents over the next 20 years has been increased by approxim ataly 

$1,570,000. The Port Commission will experience an economic gain (difference between the 
present values of the debt service paym ents on the old and new debt) of approximately $46,000. 

As a result of th e refunding of th e Series 1962 Series E Bonds the Port Commission im plem en ted  
GASB Statem en t No. 23, "Accounting an d Fin an cial Reporting for Refunding of Debt Reported  
by Proprietary Activities." The refunding resulted  in  the recognition of a Deferred  Am ount on 
Refunding of $40,933. 

At December 31, 2003, $40,933 of the Deferred  Amount on Refunding was amortized ($36,669 
in 2002) resulting in a net Deferred  Amoun t on Refunding of $-0-. 

Com pensated Absences - The following is a sum m ary of th e changes  in co m pen sated  absen ces 
for th e year en ded  December 31, 2003 an d 2002: 

2003 

Com pen sated  Absen ces 

2002 

Com pensated Absen ces 

Balan ce 
01/01/03 Additions 

$ 290,622 $ 310,088 

Balan ce  
Red uctions 12/31/03 

$ 269,047 $ 331,663 

Balan ce Balan ce 
01/01/02 Additions  Reductions' 12/31/02 

$ 232,149 $159,497 $ 101,024 $ 290,622 

Changes in Am ounts Invested in Capital Assets, N et of Related Debt 

Th e chan ge in am ounts invested in capital assets, net of related debt is summ arized as  follows: 

Bal an ce at Jan uary 1 
Change in  Capital Assets 
Chan ge in Related Debt 
Change in D ebt Related to Unspent Proceeds 

Balan ce at Decem ber  31 

8. R estricted N et A ssets 

$ 41,929,688 
5,105,866 
304 ,586 

(67,019) 

$ 36,524,578 
5,906,019 
283,617 

(784,526) 

$ 47,273,121 $ 41,929,688 

Restricted net assets at Decem ber 31, 2003 an d 2002, cons ist of $296,340 and $313,134 
restricted for debt service and $3,291,718 an d $3,358,737 restricted for capital projects, 
co nsisting of unspen t bond proceeds. 

The requirem en ts for the debt service, at Decem ber 31, 2003 an d 2002, were co mputed as 
follows: 

-34 - 



Assets Restricted for Bond Retirem ent 
and Debt Service 

Les s Curren t Liabilities Payable from  
Restricted  A ssets 

9. Leases 

2003 2002 

$ 834,117 $ 839,465 

(537,777) (526,331) 

$ 296,340 $ 313,134 

A grain storage facility, m olasses tank farm , barge term/hal, tract of land on which a petroleum 
term inal is located , public warehouse and various other properties  of the Port Comm ission have 
been leased to tenants for various term s. The lessees bear  substantially all ordinary operating and 
m aintenance expenses of the leas ed properties an d have the option of ren ewing th e leas es at th e 
end of the original term . 

Th e carrying values an d depreciation expense of th e properties  leased under long-term  leases  by 
th e Port Comm ission ar e as follows: 

Railroad Tracks an d Yards 
Roadways an d Surface Drainage 
Buildings an d Structures 
Equipm ent 

Total Leased Property 

Less: Accum ulated Depreciation 

N et Leased  Property 

Dep reciation Expen se 

$ 562,680 $ 562,680 
2,756,116 271,512 
38,306,524 37,954,672 
2,257,160 2,257,160 

43,882,480 41,046,024 

(25,905,551) (24,627,610) 

$ 17,976,929 $ 16,418,414 

$ 1,102,679 $ 956,711 

The following is a schedul e by years of future m inim um  rental paym en ts receivable on 
noncancelable long-term leases as  of Dec ember 31: 

Year  Ended December 31 

2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
Later Years 

Total M inimum Future Rentals 
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Future 
Ren tal 

Reven ues 

$ 1,881,757 
1,061,195 
552,832 
245,795 
155,921 

$ 3,897,500 



For the pro'pose of th ese statements, the lease amount as set forth in the original lease agreem en t 
or set by the most recent appraisal was used in the determination of the minimum future rentals 
on Iong-t~  leases and thus  is subject to change. 

Substantially all em ployees of the Port Commission are m em bers of the Louisian a State 
Employees Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing, multiple-em ployer defined ben efit 
pension plan. The System  is a statewide public em ployee retirem ent system  (PERS) for the 
ben efit of state employees, which is adm inistered  and controlled  by a separate board oftrustves. 

All full-tim e Port Com m ission em ployees are eligible to participate in the System . Ben efits vest 
with 10 years of service. At retirem en t age, em ployees are en titled to annual ben efits equal to 
$300 plus  2.5%  of their highest co nsecutive 36 months' average salary multiplied  by th eir years 
of credited service. Vested em ployees may retire at (a) any age wi th 30 years of service, 0a) age 
55 with 25 years of service, or (c) age 60 wi th 10 years of service. In addition, vested em ployees 
have th e option of redxaeed  benefits at an y age wi th 20 years of service. Th e System also 
provides death an d disability benefits. Benefits are established or am en ded  by state statute. Th e 
System  issues an  annual publicly available finan cial report th at includes fin ancial statem en ts an d 
required  supplem en tary inform ation for th e Sys tem . That rep ort m ay be obtained by writing to 
the Lo uisian a State Em ployees  Retirem ent System , Post Office Box 44213, Baton Rouge, 

Louisiana 70804-4213, or by calling (225) 922-0608 or (800) 256-3000. 

M em bers are req uired by state statute to contribute 7.5%  gross salary, and th e Port Comm ission 
is required to contribute at an  actuarially determ ined rate as required by Loui siana Revised 
Statu te 11:102. The co ntribution rate for the years ended Decem ber 31, 2003, 2002 and fourteen- 
m onths ended  2001 were 15.8% , 14.1% an d 13% of annum covered  payroll. The Port 
Comm ission's contributions to th e system  for th e years ended  Decem ber 31, 2003 an d 2002 were 
$192,640 an d $172,296, respectively. Th e Port Commission's co ntributions to th e sys tem  for the 
fourteen-m onth period ended December 31, 2001 was $194,328, an d were eq ual to the required  
contributions for each year. 

11. Postretirem ent H ealth Care and Life Insurance Benefits 

The Port Comm ission provides certain continuing health care and life insuran ce ben efits for its 
retired em ployees. Substan tially all of the Port Comm ission's em ployees becom e eligible for 
th ese benefits if they reach norm al retirem ent age while working for the port. Th ese ben efits for 
retirees an d sim ilar  benefits for active em ployees are provided  through a state-operated  gr oup 

insurance program whose monthly premiums are paid jointly by the employee and the Port 
Comm ission. The Port Comm ission recognizes the co st of provi ding these benefits to retirees 
(port's portion of prem iam s) as an expense when paid during the year. These benefits for 26 and 
23 retirees totaled  $85,844  an d $74,273, respectively for the years ended Decem ber 31, 2003 an d 
2002. 

12. Risk M anagem ent and Contingent Liabilities 

The Port Commission is exposed to various risks of losses related to gen eral liability; theft of, 
dam age to, an d des truction of assets; errors and om issions; workers' com pens ation; em ployee 
health and accident; an d natural disas ters. The Port Comm ission is a party to various legal 



proceedings inciden tal to its business. Ce~,~in claims, suits, and complaints arising in the 
ordinary course of busines s have been filed or are pending against the port. In the opinion of 
m anagement, all such m atters are adequately covered by comm ercial insurance purchased by th e 
port, or if not so covered , are not expected to have a material effect on the financial statem en ts of 
th e Port Comm ission. Settlem en t am ounts have not ex ceeded  in suran co  co verage for the current 
period or the three prior years. 

13. D eferred Com pensation Plan 

Certain em ployees of the port co mmission participate in the Louisiana Deferred Compensation 
Plan adopted  under the provisions of Intern al Reven ue Code Section 457. Com plete disclosures 
relating to the State of Louisian a Public Employees Deferred Compensation Plan  are included  in 
the fin an cial statem ents of th e State of Louisiana. Effective November  I, 2000 the Port 
Com m ission m ay m ake a discretionary m atching co ntn'bution up to 5%  of the em ployees' base 
pay not to exceed $5,500 per calen dar year. The Port Commission co ntribution for the years 
ended December 31, 2003 an d 2002 were $56,205 and $50,695, respectively. 

14. C onstruction in Progress 

As of Decem ber 31, 2003, co ntracts for co nstruction work in  progress have been awar ded  in th e 
am oun t of $7,681,368. Costs of $7,057,582 have been incurred. The Port Commission has 
received reimbursem ent for these projects of $4,805,878 from the Department of-Transportation 
and Developm en t. Th e es tim ated  Port Commission liability to co m plete construction work in 
pr ogr ess after m aximum reimbursem ent is $249,726, plus additional fees for testing an d 
in spection. At Decem ber  31, 2003, there were no co ntracts for constru ction th at had not been 
aw ar ded . 

15. Lease Term ination - LaGrain  International, Inc. 

On August 27, 2001, th e Port Comm ission entered  in to a lease term in ation agr eem en t with  

LaGrain International, Inc. ("LaGrain") who was leasing one of the Port Commission's 
warehouse facilities for a rico  m ill operation. In cons ideration for th e term ination -of th e lease, 
LaC, rain agr eed  to pay the Port Commission $300,000 in cash an d, as additional co ns ideration, 
tran sfer to the Port Commission certain fixed as sets and leasehold im provem en ts that were used 
by LaG-rain in their rice mill operation. LaG-rain estimated  these assets to have a net book value 
of appr oxim ately $4,500,000. 

During th e prior year, th e Port Comm ission determined  that fixed  assets with  a net book value of 

$784,492 (consisting mostly of leasehold improvem ent type items) were to be used by the Port 
Comm ission in their oper ations  an d were recorded as fixed as sets in the finan cial statem ents. 
The rem aining fixed assets (consisting of industry-specific equipment) will likely not be us ed in 
an y future Port Comm ission operations since th ey are specific to a rice m ill operation. It was  
m anagem ent's intention to m arket th ese items to potential buyers involved in rice m illing 
oper ations. 

As specified in  the lease termination agr eem ent, in the even t the item s were sold prior to 
February 28, 2004, the proceeds of any such sale would be shared on a 50~/o/50%  basis betw een  
th e Port Com m ission and LaGrain. Furtherm ore, as  per th e agr eem ent, if th e Port Comm ission 
receives an y re venues from  th e leasing of th ese fixed assets to an y third party prior to 
February28, 2004, th e reven ues are to be shared on a 70%/30% bas is between the Port 
Comm ission and La grain. Any sale proceeds or ren tal reven ues received  after this date wi ll be 
100%  for th e Port Comm ission. 
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During 2002, The Port Commission sold the majority of the assets for $354
,174, of which $177

,087 was due to LaGrain net of $100
,000 in disposal costs. Th e Port Com m ission paid 

LaGraln $74,582 prior to year end
. A capital co ntribution of $177,087 was recorded in th e prior 

year for th e Port's Com mission share of the reven ue
. 
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G reater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission 
State of Louisiana 

Schedule of Lease Inform ation 

As of December 31, 2003 

The schedule of lease inform ation provides inform ation regarding property and facilities 
currently being leased by the port to the various lessees. 

Schedul e of Future Lease R entals R evenue W ithout O ptions 

The schedule of future lease rentals revenue indicates the estim ated revenues to be received fi'om 
the leases currently in effect. 

Schedule of Operating Expenses by M ajor Category 

The schedule of operating expenses by major category groups details expenses by major expense 
category . 

Schedule of A dm inistrative Expenses 

The schedule of administrative expenses details the administrative expen ses by major type. 

Summary Schedule of Operating Income (Loss) by Facility 

Th e summary schedule of operating income (loss) by facility details the operating reven ues, 
operating expen ses, and depreciation expen se by th e various port facilities

. 

Schedule of Com m issioners' Per D iem  

Th e sch edule of per diem paid board m embers was prepared in compliance with House 
Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of th e 1979 Session of the Louisian a Legislature

. 

Per diem  paym en ts ar e auth orized by Louisiana Revised Statute 34:1221 an d ar e included in 
personal services expenses. Board m embers are paid $75 per day

, to a m axim um  of 24 days per  
year, for board m eetings and official business. During th e period of an  em ergen cy as declared 
an d determined by th e governor

, th e Port Comm ission shall be auth orized to hold as m an y 
m eetings or em ergency activities as th e board deem s necessary an d th e m em bers shall be paid per 
diem  for such m eetings or activities. 

-39- 



G reater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission 
State of Louisiana 

Lessee 

A ce Storage 

A gway System s 

Facility 

Transit Shed 

A ssociated Barge Term inal of Baton Rouge
, LLC Crane 

Baton Rouge M arine Contractors #1 

Baton Rouge M arine Contra ctors #2 

Cargill, Inc. (Grain Elevator) 

Tract of Land 

Office Space 

Cargill/Seaboard (Flour Mill) Tract of Land 

D &  G Storage 

Dow  Chem icals 

Building & Land 

Transit Shed  

Tact of Land 

Kinder Morgan Bulk Terminal (formerly Hall- Barge Term inal 
Buck) 

Louisian a Sugar Products, In c. Tract of Land 

Petroletma Fuel & Terminal (Apex) 

-40- 

Tract of Lan d 

M inim um  
A nnual 

Rental for 2004 

$ 250,000 

20,000 

36,000 

10,000 

5,890 

189,000 

13,023 

23,333 

106,000 

250,200 

150,000 

25,641 

22,500 



Current Lease 
D ate of 

Expiration 

M onth-to-M onth 

M onth-to-M onth 

Schedule 1 

Rem arks 

Rent is payable monthly in advance and includes $400.00 for utilities. 

Lease ended M ay 31, 2003. 

June 30, 2012 Ren tal is payable annually in advance
. 

Dece mber 31, 2007 Leas ee has the option to renew for a ten-year period at the end of the lease 

term . Rental is payable m onthly in advan ce. 

February 28, 2008 

April30,2004 

Lessee pays costs of insurance and m aintaining or replacing eqt~ 

has the option to ren ew for an  additional five years at $235
,000 l 

Lessee has  the option to renew at the end of the leas e term . Renl 
payable annually in advan ce . 

Rent is paya ble m onthly in advan ce an d can  fluctuate in am ount 

the PPI (Producer Price Index). 
M onth -to-M onth  Rent is payable m onthly in advance

. 

M ay 31, 2006 Ren t is paya ble m onthly in advan ce
. 

April30,2006 

Lessee  pays  costs of insuran ce, m aintaining th e facility an d m aint 
replacing equipm ent an d has th e option to renew at th e en d of th e 
Rent is payable in sem iannual in stallm en ts. 

Rent is payable month ly in advance. Lessee has option to renew for four 
additional five-year periods. 

September  30, 2004 Lessee has option to renew for three additional three-year periods
. Rental 

is payable annually in advan ce. 

(CONTINUED) 
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Lessee 

Rail Link, Inc. 

Ram sayoScarlett 

South Louisiana Cem ent
, Inc. 

Stone Oil Distributor 

Telecorp / A T & T 

T T & H W arehouse
, Inc. #1 

T T & H W arehouse
, Inc. #2 

W estway Industrial M olasses #1 

W estw ay In dustrial M olas ses #2 

W estw ay In dustrial M olasses #3 

W estway In dustrial M olas ses #4 

Others 

-41- 

Office Space 

W arehous e & Land 

Tract of Land 

Tract of/and 

Space on W ater Tower  

Facility 

Transit Shed 

M olasses Tank Farm  

Tract of Land 

Tract of Land 

Tract of Land 

Various 

M illilllllm  
Annual 

R ental for 2004 

12,000 

139,825 

22,500 

82,800 

10,800 

120,000 

225,000 

98,600 

34,785 

14,213 

13,320 

6,327 

1,881,757 



 

Current Lease 
D ate of 

Expiration 

January 31, 2006 

M arch 31, 2005 

December 3 l, 2005 

August 18, 2008 

Rem arks 

Rent is payable monthly in advan ce. 

Rent is payable m onthly in advan ce. 

Ren t is paya ble m onthly in advance . Lease provides for a progress in crease 
in wharfage rates on cem ent and aggregate. A progr essive in crease 
m inim um  tonnage per  year  is guaranteed in  the lease. 

Le ssee has option to renew for two additional five-year periods. Ren t is 
payable sem i-annually in  advance . 

Lessee has option to renew for a second five-year period at $1,000 per 
month, an d a third five-year period at $1,100 per month. Ren tals are paid 
m onthly in  advance . 

Lessee has the option to ren ew at th e end of th e lease. Ren t is payable 
m onthly in advan ce. 

M onth -to-M onth  Ren t is payable m onthly in  advan ce. 

April 30, 2006 

February 28, 2006 

A pril 30, 2006 

M onth -to-M onth 

Various 

Lessee pays costs of insurance an d m aintaining the facility an d has th e 

option to ren ew at th e en d of the leas e term . The Port Comm ission is 
responsible for replacem en ts due to ordinary wear an d tear. Rental is 
paya ble m onttdy in advan ce. 
Ren t is paya ble m onthly in ad vance. 

Rent is payable m onthly in  advance. 

Rent is payable m onthly in advance. 

The Port Commission has leas ed m inor items of property and equipm en t to 
other s. Annual ren tals, expiration dates, an d oth er  term s vary with each 
lease. 



Greater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission 
State of Louisiana 

Lessee 

Ace Storage 

Agw ay Systems 

Associated Barge Terrains! of Baton 

Rouge, LLC 

Baton Rouge M arine Contractors #1 

Baton Rouge M arine Contractors #2 

Cargill, Inc. (Grain Elevator) 
Cargill/Seaboard (Flour Mill) 
Comm unity Coffee 

D &  G Storage 

Dow Chemical 

Kinder Morgan Bulk Terminal (formerly 
Hall-Buck) 
Louisiana Sugar Products, Inc. 

Petroleum Fuel & Terminal (Apex) 
Rail Link, In c. 

Ramsay-Scarlett 

South Louisiana Cement, In c. 

Stone Oil Distributor 

Telecorp / A T & T 

T T & H W arehouse, In c. #1 

T T &  H  W ar ehouse, Inc. #2 

W estw ay In dus trial M olasses #1 

W estway In dustrial M olasses #2 

W estway In dus trial M olas ses #3 

W estway In dus trial M olasses #4 

Oth ers 

Facility 

Transit Shed 
F'rce Tracts of Land 

Crane 

Tract of Land 

Office Space 

Grain Storage Facility 

Tract o f Lan d 

Building & Land 

Transit Shed  

Container Yard 

Barge Terminal 

Tract of Lan d 

Tract of Laud 

Office Space 

W areh ouse & Land 

Tract of Laud 

Tract of Lan d 

Space on W ater  Tow er  

Facility 

Transit Shed 

M olasses  Tank Farm  

Tract of Lan d 

Tract of Land 

Tract of Lan d 

W BR Parish 

In dson Baptist 

Savoie In dus tries , Inc. 

TT & H 

W BR Cham ber 
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2004 2005 

$ 250,000 
20,000 

36,000 

10,000 

5,89O 

189,000 

13,023 

23,333 

106,000 

250,200 

150,000 

25,641 

22,500 

12,000 

139,825 

22,500 

82,800 

10,800 

120,000 

225,000 

98,600 

34,785 

14,2t3 

13,320 

I00 

1,000 

3,019 

1,200 

1,008 

$ 

15,000 

10,000 

5,890 

157,500 

13,023 

250,200 

150,000 

25,641 

12,000 

34,956 

22,500 

82,800 

10,800 

120,000 

98,600 

34,785 

14,213 

100 

3,019 

168 

$ 1~881.,757 $ 1~061,195 



2006 2007 2008 Later 

$ 

10,000 

5,890 

13,023 

104,250 

150,000 

8,547 

1,000 

82,800 

10,800 

120,000 

32,867 

5,798 

4,738 

100 

3,019 

10,000 

6,053 

13,023 

82,800 

10,800 

120,000 

100 

3,019 

$552,832 $245 795 

$ 

10,000 

2,171 

69,000 

7,650 

30,000 

100 

Schedule 2 

Options 

End 

$ M onth-to-M onth 
M onth-to-M onth 

03/31/05 

35,000 06/30/12 

12/31/07 

10/31/05 

02/28/08 
"

04/30/04 

M onth -to-M onth  

05/31/06 

12/31/06 

04 /30/06 

09/30/04 

01/31/06 

03/31/05 

12/31/05 

10/31/08 

08/18/08 

03/31/08 

M onth-to-M onth  

04/30/06 

02/28/06 

04/30/06 
-  M onth -to-M onth 

2,000 12/31/28 
-  12/31/04 

12/31/07 

M onth -to-M onth  

02/28/05 



G reater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission 
State of Louisiana 

Schedule 3 

For the years ended December 31
, 2003 and 2002 

Personnel Services 
Operating Services 
Travel 
Supplies 
Professional Services 
D epreciation 
Other 

Total 
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$ 2,192,088 
1,402,054 
48,953 
153,868 
185,443 

2,063,706 
42,915 

$ 2,110,153 
1,155,868 
44,076 
156,773 
267,482 

2,006,211 
115,255 

$ 6,089,027 $ 5,855,818 



G reater Baton R ouge Port Com m ission 

State of Louisiana 

For the years ended December 31
, 2003 and 2002 

Director's Salary 
Oth er Salaries and W ages 
Annual, Sick and Com pensatory Leave 
Legal 
A dvertising 
Bad Debts 
Travel 
Trade and Sales Solicitation 
Education Expenses  
Auditing 
Engineering 
Consulting Fees 
Legislative Cons ultan t Fees 
Contributions to State Retirem ent System

, Payroll Taxes, 
an d Group Insuran ce Program  
Office Supplies and Postage 
Telephone and Telegraph 
Dues an d Subscriptions 
Utilities 
Office Repairs an d M aintenan ce 
Autom obile Expenses 
Insuran ce 
Outside Adm inistrative Services 
M iscellan eous 
Com m issioners' Per Diem  
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Schedule 4 

$  149,298 
570,797 
134,796 
46,058 
202,503 
3,150 
48,782 
64,785 
17,852 
20,950 
17,191 
26,593 
40,440 

352,493 
39,900 
20,702 
19,816 
13,480 
62,757 
3,079 
75,409 
11,038 
38,369 
21,600 

$ 130,056 
501,973 
122,784 
75,363 
201,356 
2,552 
42,247 
55,884 
27,826 
26,000 
13,669 
74,441 
40,440 

311,086 
45,352 
20,263 
14,959 
12,478 
76,845 
2,126 
46,123 
10,010 
111,880 
21,450 

$ 2,001,838 $ 1,987
,163 



Greater Baton Rouge Port Com mission 
State of Louisiana 

For the years ended Deoember 31, 2003 and 2002 

Grain Elevator 
General Cargo Docks 
Baton Rouge Barge Term inal 
M olasses Tank Farm  
W est Bank Railroad Facility 
Petroleum  Term inal 
M idstream  Bulk H an dling Facility 
M iscellan eous River Activities 
M iscellan eo us Eas t an d W est 
Bank A ctivi ties 

Inland Ri vers M arine Term inal 
Foreign Trade Zone 

Oper ating Revenues 
2003 2002 " 

$ 477,346 $ 345,624 
860,625 1,110,042 
326,152 323,504 
355,173 320,402 
400,040 553,092 
298,243 449,827 
3,481 

495,850 514,800 

937,548 
269,210 
25,000 

690,055 
160,549 
25,000 

2003 

$ 43,812 
592,758 

i~io8 
41,117 
343,437 

49631 

862,980 
88,640 

2002 

$ 78,820 
44 3,705 
12,685 

63~94 
355,278 
62,998 

756,134 
89,530 

Totals Before Adm inistrative Expenses  4,448,668 4,492,895 2,023,483 1,862,444 

A dministrative Expenses 

Total $ 4,448,668 $ 4,492,895 $ 4,025,321 $ 3,849,607 
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2003 

$ 168,646 
1,221,133 

469 
112,495 
36,615 
12,156 

322 

2002 

$ 171,652 
1,216,976 

469 
112,495 
36,590 
29,887 
13,225 
-  

304,545 211
,836 

137,874 140
,882 

Operating Income (Loss) 
2003 2002 

$ 264,888 

(953,266) 
315,575 
201,561 
19,988 

245,456 
3,159 

495,850 

(229,977) 
42,696 
25,000 

$ 95,152 
(550,639) 
310,350 
144,613 
161,224 
356,942 

(13,225) 
514,800 

(277,915) 
(69,863) 
25,000 

1,994,255 1
,934,012 430

,930 696,439 

$ 2,063,706 $ 2,006
,211 $ (1,640,359) $ (1,362,923) 
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Com m issioner 

G reater 

SCHEDU LE 

Brian, Randy 
D 'A gosfino, Charles 
Dragg, Alvin 
Ishm ael, Calvin 
Johnson, Larry 
Juneau, Jerald 
K im ball, H .M . 
Robertson, Lynn 
Scott, H enry 
Sm ith, Lucille 
Thibaut, Charles 
Tillis, Chucky 
W ales, Robert 
W allace, Steve 
W oods, Larry 

For th e 
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G reater Baton R ouge Port Com m ission 
Ten Y ear C om parison 

Operating Income (Loss) (In Dollars) (Unaudited) 
For the Fiscal Y ears Ended O ctober 31, 1994 through 2000, 
the Fourteen-m onth period ended D ecem ber 31, 2001, and 
the Fiscal Y ear Ended D ecem ber 31, 2002 through 2003. 

0 B (100,000) _ _ 2 I (200,000) (300,000) (400,000) (5oo,ooo) 
(600,000) 
(700,000) 
(800,000) 
(900,000) 



GREATER BATON ROUGE PORT COM M ISSION 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 

Summary of Revenues, Expenses, en d Net Income (Loss) 
For the Fiscal Years Ended October 31, 1994 through 2000 
the Fourteen -month period Ended December 31, 2001, and 
the Fiscal Year Ended December 3 I, 2002 through  2003. 
(Unaudited) 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Dockage an d wharfage 
Rentals 
Freight handling 
Storage 
Other 

Total 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
D irect 
A dm inistrative 
Depre ciation 

Total 

Operating Income (Loss) 

NONOPERATING RE VE NUES (Expenses) 
In vestm ent incom e 
M iscellaneous 
Gain of sale of fixed assets 
In come from lease term ination 
Settlem ent in com e 
Inter est expense 
Am ortization of debt issue and bond premium , net 
Trustee's fees 

Total 

Net Income (Loss) before extraordinary item 

Extraordinary item  

Net Income (Loss) 
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$ 1,751,445 
739,474 
240,424 
5,276 

803,127 
$ 3,539,746 

$ 1,861,499 
910,778 

1,663,909 
$ 4,436,186 

1995 

$ 2)37,645 
760,617 
575,118 

5~5o 
i,o13,393 

$ 4,591,823 

$ 1,867,646 
1,140,418 
1,456,530 

$ 4,464,594  

$ 2,039,686 
837,053 
169,388 

37#70 
959,842 

$ 4,043,939 

$ 1,994,598 
1,293,318 
1,445,690 

$ 4,733,606 

$ (896,440) $ 127,229 $ (689,667) 

$ 160,042 $ 290,044 $ 331,983 
430 

$ (874,391) $ 282 598 $ (494,061) 



1997 1998 

$ 2,135#18 
874,521 
61,255 
38,452 
931,699 

$ 4,041,845 

$ 1,686~93 
1,169,836 
1,668,677 

$ 4,525,306 

$ 1,659,264 
986,168 
87,691 
83,380 
866,871 

$ 3,683,374 

$ 1~57,700 
1,258,117 
1,552,448 

$ 4,768,265 

$ 1,367~74 
1347,279 
20,887 
49,636 
835,763 

$ 3,621.039 

$ 1,552,082 
1,296,006 
1,554,978 

$ 4,403,066 

2000 2001 2002 2003 

$ 1,139,604 
!,662~19 

200 
39,680 
921,284 

$ 3.763,187 

$ 1,515~38 
1,702,111 
1,846,683 

$ 5,064,232 

$ 1,443,921 
2,346,758 

700 
6,362 

1,315,196 
$ 5,112,937 

$ 2,047,677 
2,088,068 
2,312,267 

$ 6,448,012 

$ 1,054~39 
2,183,799 

$ 1,051,943 
1,992,268 

5,767 2,232 
1,248,890 

$ 4,492,895 

$ 1,862,444 
1,987,163 
2,006,211 

$ 5,855,818 

1A02,225 
$ 4.448.668 

$ 2~23,483 
2,001,838 
2,063,706 

$ 6,089,027 

$ (483,461) $ (1,084,891) $ (782,027) $ (1,301,045) $ (1,335,075) $ (1,362,923) $ (1,640,359) 

$ 327,935 $ 347,400 $ 533,011 $ 1,136,111 $ 1,277,948 $ 787,047 $ 377,535 

(120,037) 
(248) 
~,790) 

$ 203,860 

(127,272) 
(1,701) 
(1,628) 

$ 216,799 

5,803,079 
2,638,169 

(27,558) 

2,000,000 

(516,893) 
(17,968) 
(8,441) 

$ 2,565,251 

744 123 9,950 

(576,953) 
(18,951) 
(5,314) 

$ 677.474 

(469,44 8) 
(17,706) 
(3,240) 

$ 296,776 

(44 7,532) 
(11,736) 
(3,675) 

$ (75,458) 

$ (279,601) $ (868,092) $ 7,810,506 $ 1,264,206 $ (657,601) $(1,066,147) $(1,715,817) 

None None N one None N one None 

$ (279,601) $(1,384,334) $ 7,810,506 $ 1,264,206 $ (657,601) $(1,066,147) $(1,715,817) 
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G reater Baton R ouge Port Com m ission 

Five Y ear C argo Sum m ary 
For the Fiscal Y ears Ended O ctober 31, 1999 through 2000, 

the Fourteen-m onth period ended D ecem ber 31, 2001, and 
the Fiscal Y ear Ended D ecem ber 31, 2002 through 2003. 

(Unaudited) 

ti 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 
Cargo Docks 222,308 143,437 124,431 15,556 21,019 

Coke H andling Facility 1,377,154 17577,809 1,675,117 1,222,082 1,393,356 

Inland River M arine 4,721 66,963 129,811 174,776 276,717 

M id sa'eam Buoys 45,100 195,038 726,933 - 414 

Petroleum  Term inal 850,980 1,304,471 1,606,581 2,064,609 1,368~863 

M olasses Term inal 112,307 246,905 250,912 296,220 366,631 

G rain Elevator 676,921 265,772 362,639 74,685 282,614 

Burnside Term inal 3,488,355 3,543,922 4,029,150 2,748,456 2,092,330 

6,777,846 7,344,317 8,905,574 6,596,384 5,801,944 

Reported in Short Tons 

G reater Baton R ouge Port C om m ission 

Ten Y ear Tonnage Sum m ary 
For the Fiscal Y ears Ended O ctober 31, 1994 through 2000, 

the Fourteen-m onth period ended D ecem ber 31, 2001, and 

the Fiscal Y ear Ended Decem ber 31, 2002 through 2003. 

(Unaudited) 
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G reater Baton R ouge Port C om m ission 

G eneral C argo D ocks Cargo C om parison R eport 

For the Fiscal Years Ended O ctober 31, 1999 through 2000, 

the Fourteen-m onth period ended Decem ber 31, 2001, and 

the Fiscal Y ear Ended D ecem ber 31, 2002 through 2003. 

Linerboard, M CS, etc. 

M achines, M achinery, etc 

O res, Earths, etc. 

Pipes, Tubing, etc. 

Steel Beam s, Rail, etc. 
M iscellaneous Cargoes 

Total Im port Tonnage 

Lhlerboard, M CS, etc. 

Lum ber, Flitches, etc. 

M achinery  

Pipes, Tubing, etc. 

Plywood, Veneer, etc. 

W oodpulp, Rolled Pulp, etc 

M iscellaneous Cargoes 

Total Export Tonn age 

Linerboard, M CS, etc. 

Lum ber, Flitches, etc. 

Gas, Diesel, Fuels, etc. 
Ores, Earths, etc. 

Pipes, Tubing, etc. 

Plyw ood, Veneer, etc. 

Rice 

Steel Beam s, Rail, etc. 

W oodpulp, Rolled Pulp, etc 

M iscellaneous Car goes 

Total D om estic Tonnage 

Reported in Short Tons (Unaudited) 

FY 98-99 FY 99-00 I FY 00,01 FY 2002 FY 2003 
2,261 

792 i 821 145 

3,197 6,341 1,692 3,384 423 

16,992 14,372 774 

212 5,185 

1,003 

5,670 29,310 16,885 [ 4,387 1,342 

FY  98,99 FY 99:00 FY 00-01 FY 2002 FY 2003 

129,711 82,117 86,153 

2,475 1,047 546 

1,512 

23,200 2,160 3,750 

273 368 502 

56,251 18,259 12,049 

81 234 

213,503 101,791 99,250 2,394 3,750 

FY 98-99 FY 99.00 FY  00'01 FY 2002 FY 2003 

1,363 1,523 2 

54 

1,039 95 75 1,889 
1,089 5,051 

235 1,430 79 666 

289 [ 
2,819 

8,321 3,273 7,788 

i10 
34 45 2,660 2,028 

3,135 12~36 8,296 8,986 15,927 

222,308 1 :; 143,437 I 124i431 ] 15;767 ] 21,019 
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G reater Baton R ouge Port C om m ission 

G eneral Cargo D ock Tonnage 

Five Year C om parison 

For the Fiscal Y ears Ended O ctober 31, 1999 through 2000, 

the Fourteen-m onth period ended D ecem ber 31, 2001, and 

the Fiscal Y ear Ended D ecem ber 31, 2002 through 2003. 

(Unaudited) 
FY 98-99 FY 99-00 FY 00-01 FY 2002 FY 2003 

N evem ber 11,921 8,614 5,611 

Decem ber 42,738 18,258 6 

January 8,216 24,557 7,096 856 2,111 

February 16,905 19,200 9,957 3,085 745 

M arch 18,558 29,977 13,857 773 2,040 

April 13,499 26 10,557 629 1,536 

M ay 12,775 19,725 22,033 1,210 2,677 

June 18,581 840 3,119 714 1,089 

July 29,100 7,854 8,110 702 366 

August 3,379 7,186 7,115 485 375 

Septem ber 19,139 3,379 9,443 2,096 3,025 

O ctober 27,497 3,821 613 1,208 1,415 

November 10,155 1,724 4,039 

Decem ber 16,759 2,074 1,601 

222,308 143,437 124,431 15,556 21,019 

Reported in Short Torts 

G eneral C argo D ock Tonnage 

Five Y ear C argo M ovem ents 

For the Fiseal Y ears Ended O ctober 31, 1999 through 2000, 

the Fourteen-m onth period ended D ecem ber 31, 2001, and 

the Fiscal Y ear Ended D ecem ber 31, 2002 through 2003. 

(Unaudited) 



 

Percentage of T onnage H andled by Facility 

For the Fiscal Y ear Ended D ecem ber 31, 2003 

M onthly C argo A ctivity 
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended D ecem ber 31, 2003 

- 55J 



 



Statem ents Perform ed in A ccordance with 



This Page is Intentionally Leit Blank
. 



 



does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatem ents in am ounts that would be 
m aterial in re lation to the financial statem ents being audited m ay occur and not be detected  
within a tim ely period by em ployees in the norm al course of perform ing their assigned functions. 
W e noted  no m atters involving the inter n~ control over financial rep orting and its operation th at 
we co ns ider to be m aterial weaknesses. However, we noted  other matters involving the internal 
control over fin ancial reporting th at we have rep orted  to m an agem ent in a separate letter dated  
February 23, 2004. 

This rep ort is inten ded for the information an d use of the Greater Baton Rouge Port Commission, 
m anagem en t, and oth ers wi thin the organizations . However, this repur t is a m atter  of public 
re cord an d its distribution is not lim ited . 
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GREATER BATON ROUGE PORT COM M ISSION 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 

Annual Financial Statem ents 
Twelve M onths Ending Decem ber 31, 2003 

TRAN SM ITFAL LETTER 
AFFIDAVIT 

C O N T E N T S 

Statem ents 

M D&A Reference Note 
Balance Sheet 
Statem ent of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net A ssets 
Statem ent of Activities 
Statem en t of Cash Flow s 
Notes to the Finan cial Statem ents 

A. Summ ary of Significan t Accounting Policies 
B. Budgetary A ccounting 
C. Deposits with Finan cial Institutions and Investments 
D. Capital Assets 
E. Inventories 
F. Restricted As sets 
G. Leave 
H. Retirem ent System 
I. Post Retirem ent Health Care en d Life Insurance Benefits 
J. Leases 
K. Long-Term  Liabilities 
L. Litigation 
M . Related Party Transactions 
N . Accounting Changes 
O. In-Kind Contributions 

Defeased Issues 
Cooperative Endeavors 

Government-Mandated Nonexchan ge Transactions (Grants) 
Violations of Finance-Related Legal or Contractual Provisions 
Short-Term Debt 
Disaggregation of Receivable Balan ces 
Disaggregation of Payable Balances 
Subsequent Even ts 
Segm ent Inform ation 
Due to/Due from an d Transfers 
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 
Prior-Year Restatem ent of N et Assets 
Schedule of Per Diem  Paid Board M embers 
Schedule of State Funding 
Schedules of Long-Term Debt 
Schedules of Long-Term  Debt Am ortization 
Schedules of Long-Term  Debt Am ortization 
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G REATER BATON RO UG E PORT CO M M ISSIO N 
STATE O F LO UISIAN A 

Annual Financial Statem ents 
Twelve M onths Ending D ecem ber 31, 2003 

Division of Adm inistration 
Office  of Statewide Reporting 
and A ccounting Policy 
P. O . Box 94095 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9095 

Legislative Auditor 
P. O . Box 94397 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9397 

Personally cam e an d appeared before the undersigned auth ority, Bradley L. Stueber, 

Administrative Accoun tan t of th e Greater Baton Rouge Port Comm ission who duly sworn , 

deposes an d says, that the finan cial statements herewith given present fairly the fin an cial 

position of th e Greater  Baton Rouge Port Com m ission at December 31, 2003 an d the results 

of operations for th e twelve m onth  period ended in accordan ce with  policies an d practices 

established by th e Division of Adm inistration or in acco rdan ce with  Generally Accepted  

Accountin g Principles as prescribed by the Govern m ental A ccoun ting Standards Board. 

Prepared by: 

Title: 

Telep hone N o 

D ate 

Bradley L. Stueber 

A dm inistrative A ccountant 

2253342-1660 

April22,2004 

of 

-61- 



This Page is Intentionally Leit Blank
. 



Please refer to 
Com m ission as 
Com prehensive 
2003. 

m d D iscussion 

nalysis of the Greater Baton Rouge Port 
18 in the Introductory Section of this 
elve-m onth period ending December 31, 
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G REATER BATO N R O U GE PORT CO M M ISSIO N 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 
BALAN CE SH EET 

AS O F DECEM BER 31, 2003 

ASSETS 

CURREN'r ASSE'rs: 

Cash and cash equivalents (Note C1) 

Investments (Note C2) 
Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accotmts)(Note U) 
Due from other funds (Note Y) 
Du e from  federal govermnent 

Pregaym ents 

Notes  receivable 

Total current assets 

NONCURRENT ASSETS: 

Restricted  assets (N ote F): 
Cash 

Investm ents 

Receivables 

Notes  receivable 

Capital assets (net of depreciation)(Note D) 
Land and Construction in Progress 

Other Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated  Depreciation 

Total Capital Assets 

Other  noncurrent assets 

Total nonctaTent assets 

Total assets 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of this statem ent. 
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$ 1,049 

12,311 

628 

0 

1,403 

112 

252 

15,755 

70 

4,057 

11 

1,527 

$ 57~915 

$ 73,670 



LIA BILITIES 

C U RR EN T LIA BILITIES 

A ccounts payable and accruals (N ote V) 
D eferred revenues 
B onds 10ayable 
O ther current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

N O N -CU RR EN T LIA BILITIES: 
Bonds payable 

Total long-term  liabilities 

Total liabilities 

N ET A SSETS 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
R estricted for: 

Cal~ital oroiects 
D ebt service 
O ther ourooses 

U nrestricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

Statement A (Continued) 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of this finan cial statem ent 
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(in thousands) 

2,331 
353 

47,273 



 

GREATER BATON ROUG E PORT CO M M ISSION 
STATE O F LOUISIANA 

STATEM ENT O F REVENU ES, EXPENSES, AND CH AN G ES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
FO R THE TW ELVE M ONTH S END ED DECEM BER 31, 2003 

O PER A T IN G R EV EN U ES 

Sales of com m odities and services 
Licenses, perm its, and fees 
O ther 

Total overating revenues 

O PER A TIN G EX PEN SES 

Personal services 
Travel 
O perating services 
Supplies 
Professional services 
D evreeiation 
O ther 

Total operating expenses 

Operating incom e(loss) 

N ON -OPERA TIN G REVEN U ES(EX PEN SES) 

Gain (loss) on disvosal of fixed assets 
Investm ent R evenue 
Federal grants 
Interest expense 
O ther 

Total non-overatin~ revenues(exvenses) 

Incom e(loss) before contributions and transfers 

C aoital Contributions 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets - beginnin~ 

Total net assets - ending 

Statem ent B 

(in thousands) 

$ 
1,052 
3,397 

$ 4,449 

2,192 
49 

1,402 
154 
185 

2,064 
43 

$ 6,089 

$ (1,640) 

The accompanying notes are an  integral part of this financial statem ent. 
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378 
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(448) 
(16) 



 

G REA TER BA TON  RO UG E PO RT CO M M ISSIO N 

STATE OF LO UISIANA 
STATEM ENT O F A CTIVITIES 

FOR TH E TW ELVE M ONTH S END ED DECEM BER 
31, 2003 

Chr~  for 

~ er t~ rll~uge 

PQrt~  

Oa~sa-d G'ansand 
P,e~neax~ 

~  -,$ ~  
, s 3,~o 

C_imel~ l-e~lll~ 

T~  

St~te~ cr~ 

O'ar~ ~d c~ m s m t res~'cted to ~eci~  l~
r~ 

~ c~ e~rs 

TO-al ~ ~ml r~ r~ s
, slxx~  i~m~, and ttmsfe~s 

Om ~ inr~ assets 

~ asse~-~  
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GREATER BATON R OU GE PORT COM M ISSION 
STATE O F LOUISIANA 

STATEM ENT OF CASH FLO W S 
FOR THE TW ELVE M ONT H S END ED DECEM BER 31, 2003 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from custom ers 
Cash paym ents to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash vayments to employees  for services 
Other operating reven ues (expenses) 
Net cash orovided(used) by operating activities 

Cash flows from non-capital finan cing activities 
State appropriations 
Proceeds from saie of bonds 
Overating grants received  
Other  
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Net cash provided(used) by non-capital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related finan cin g 
Proceeds from sale of bonds 
Principal ]3aid on bonds 
Interest raid on bond m aturities 
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable 
Prineinal paid on notes oavable 
Interest paid on notes payable 
Aexmisition/construetion of cavital assets 
Proceed s from sale of capital assets 
Capital contributions 
Other 

Net cash provided(used) by cavital and related finan cing 
Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of in vestm ents securities 
Proceeds from sale of investm ent securities 
Interest and divi dends earned on investm ent securities 
Net cash omvided(used) by investing activities 

Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of gear 

Cash and cash eauivalents at end of vear 

(A~q't 

(7 1733 
14 

5 497 

(2 1 #~R't 

4 859 
408 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this finan cial statement. 
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GREATER BATO N ROUGE PO RT CO M M ISSION 
STATE OF LO UISIA NA 

STATEM ENT O F CASH  FLOW S 
FO R TH E TW ELVE M ONT H S ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2003 

Reconciliation of operating income0oss) to net cash lxovided('used) by oIxtating activities: 

Operating income(loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile ~  incomaloss) to net 
Amortiz~ on of Debt Issue Costs 

(Gain) Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 

Clmnges in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase)d~rease in accounts receivable, net 
~ e)decrease in contracts receivable 
(Increase)decrease in ~'~oaymertts 
Increase(dextrose) in accounts payable and accruals 
Increase(decree) in cons~ ction conWacts 
Increase(decrease) in deferred reveames 
Increm~dectease) in othe~ liabilities 
In~nease(decrease) in bonds & coupom  

Net cash provided(used) by operating activities 

16 
2,064 

(11) 

(164) 
239 

73 

(497 
(36) 
27 

68 

(in thom ands) 

$ (1~640) 

Schedule of noneash investing, capital, and f'mancing activities (in thousands): 

Contributions of fixed assets 

Other (specify) 
Change in Unrealized (Gain) Loss on Investments 
Fixed Assets Acquired in Exchange for Lease Term ination 

Total noncash investing, capital, and financing activities: 

The accompanying notes are an  integral part of this statem ent. 
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A . SUM M ARY O F SIG NIFICANT A CCOUNTIN G POLICIES 

In April of 1984, the Financial Accounting Foun dation established th e Governm ental 
Accoun ting Standards Board (GASB) to promulgate gen erally accepted accounting 
principles and reporting standards with  respect to activities  an d transactions of state 
an d local governm ental entities . The GASB has issued  a Codification of 
Governmental Accounting and Finan cial Reporting Standards (GASB Codification). 
This co dification and subsequent GASB pronoun cements are recognized  as  gen erally 
accepted  accountin g principles for state and local governm en ts. The accom pan ying 
finan cial statem en ts have been prepar ed  in accordance with  su ch principles. 

Th e acco m pan ying financial statem en ts of th e Greater  Baton Rouge Port Com m ission 
present inform ation only as  to the tran sactions of the program s of the Port 
Comm ission as  auth orized by Louisiana statutes an d adm inistrative regulations. 

Bas is of acco unting refers to when revenues  and expenses  ar e re co gnized an d rep orted  
in th e financial statem ents. Basis of accounting relates  to th e tim in g of th e 
m eas urem en ts m ade, regar dless of the m easurem ent focus applied . 

Th e accoun ts of the Port Com m ission are m aintained in acco rd an ce with  applicable 
statu tory pre vi sions and th e regulations of the Division of Adm inistration - Offi ce of 
Statewide Reportin g and A ccounting Policy as follows: 

Revenues ar e reco gnized using th e full accrual basis of acco un ting; th er efore, 
reven ues are recognized in th e accounting period in which th ey are earned and 
becom e m easur able. 

Expenses are recognized  on the accrual basis; therefore, expenses, including 
salaries , ar e recognized  in the period in curred , if m easur able. 
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B. BUD GETARY ACCOUNTIN G 

The budget is prepared by the staff  of the Greater Baton Rouge Port Comm ission as 
follows: 

Th e Port Comm ission pr ep ares the annual Operations and M aintenance budget for th e 
internal m an agem ent purposes, an d th e budget is bas ed on what is expected  to be 
collected  during the fiscal year. The Board of Comm issioners approves  the budget. Th e 
adopted  budget co nstitutes th e auth ority of the Port Comm ission to incur liabilities and 
authorize expenses from the respective budgeted  funds. In addition, certain expenses are 
approved m onthly by th e Board before paym ent from  th e General Fund budget. Th e Port 
Comm ission is not required to present a budget comparison in its finan cial statem ents. 

Original aI~m ved  budget for 12 months ended ~  31, 2003 

Amcndn'm~ : 

~  in Cost of Inst~ q~  Expo~  

Increase in Rail Switching S~vices 

Decrease in Salaries & Related  

r~ a~ se in Cons~ g 
Deerease in Services & Supplies 

Decrease in Security Gn~  Sin-vices 

Decrease in Travel ~  
Decrease in Educatinm l Expense 
Deorease in Dredging Expense 

Final approved  budget for 12 mo nths ended  ~  31, 2003 

C . DEPO SITS W ITH  FIN AN CIA L IN STITUTIO N S AN D IN VESTM ENTS 

DEPOSITS W ITH FINAN CIAL INST/TUTIONS 

For reporting purposes, dep osits with financial institu tions include savings, 
dem an d deposits, tim e dep osits, an d certificates of deposit. Under state law th e 
port m ay dep osit funds within a fiscal agen t bank selected an d designated  by the 
Interim  Em er gen cy Boar d. Further, the port m ay invest in tim e certificates of 
deposit of state banks organized  under the laws of Louisiana, national banks 
having their principal office in the state of Louisiana, in savings accoun ts or 
shares of savings an d loan  associations and savings banks an d in share accoun ts 
and share certificate accoun ts of fed er ally or state chartered  credit unions. 
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For the purpose of th e Stat~aent of Cash Flows, all highly liquid investments 
(including restricted assets with a mat~ ty of thren  months or less when 
purchased ) are considered to be cash equivalen ts. 

Deposits in bank accounts are stated  at cost, which approxim ates m arket. Under 
state law these deposits m ust be secured by fed eral dep osit insurance or the 
pledge of securities  owned by the fiscal agent bank. The m arket value of the 
pled ged  securities plus th e fed eral dep osit insurance mus t at all tim es equal th e 
am ount on dep osit wi th th e fiscal agent. These pledged  securities are held in th e 
nam e of th e pled ging fiscal agen t bank in  a holding or custodial bank in the form  
of safekeepin g receipts held by th e State Treasurer. Th e deposits at D ecem ber  31, 
2003, w ere secured  as  follows: 

Banklc~lw, ces (c~te~ty 3 truly, if my) 

1daffy ~ ans repa~  as emery 3 ~  

the desai~ ens below. 

a l.him aed ard trtx~ eralized 

b. ~  ard collatwalized with securities 

~  art collat~ali~  with sex~ itJes hdd 

~ the pledging ins~tt~en's tnnt depam ~  cr 

a~m t 

Devosits ~a bark acax~  (in axxm xts) 
Ceaiticates O her 

Cash ~_rA~__'t g~ma~e) ~ al 

$ 1,119 .$ - $ - $ 1,119 

GASB Statem ent 40 requires any category 3 deposits to be di sclosed in the custodial cred it 
risk sec tion of Note C. If an entity has  dep osits exposed to custodial cred it risk category 3, 
it should disclose the am oun t of those balances, the fact that they ar e uninsured, an d 
whether the balan ces are either uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging finan cial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging 
finan cial institu tion's trust departm ent or agent, but not in th e entity's nam e. 
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NOTE: The "Total Bank Balances" will not neces sarily equal the "Deposits in 
Bank Account per Balance Sheet". The following is a breakdown by banking 
institution account number, an d am ount of th e bank balan ces  shown above: 

A I~ nlln& 
(in thousands) 

T otal $ 1.643 

Cash in  State Treasury 

Petty cash (in dollars) 

$ 
$ 

0 

500 

2. INVESTM ENTS 

Upon implem entation of GASB Statem ent 31, reported am ount an d fair value will 

often be the sam e num ber. 

The Greater  Baton Rouge Port Com m ission does m aintain investm ent acco unts as 

authorized  by th e laws of th e State of Louisiana. 

Inves tments can be classified  according to th e level of risk to the entity. Using the 
following categories, list each type of investm ent disclosing th e carrying am oun t, 
m arket value, and applieable category of risk. Beginning with fiscal year ending Jlm e 
30, 2004 only risk category 3 has  to be broken out separately. However, th e total 

reported  am ount and total m arket value still must be included. 

_Category. 1. - 
Insured or registered  in th e entity's nam e, or securities held by the entity 

or its agent ~n the entity's name. 

Category 2 - Uninsured  and unregistered with securities held by th e counterparty's 

trust departm ent or agent _in the en tity's nam e. 

Category.3 - Unsecured and unregistered  with securities held by th e counterparty, or 

~ " ' e by its trust dep artment or agent but not m the entity snam... 
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OTHER DISCLOSURES REQUIRED FOR INVESTMENTS 

b. 

c. 

Investm ents in pools m anaged by other governm en ts or m utual funds 

Securities underlying reverse repurchase agreem ents 

Unrealized inves tm ent losses 

d. Comm itm ents as of December 31
, 2003, to res ell securities under yield 

m aintenance repurchas e agreem en ts: 

1. Carrying am ount and m arket value at Dec em ber  31 
of sec urities to b

e resold 

e. 

f. 

g. 

2. Description of the term s of th e agreem ent 
Disclosur e no longer required

. 

Losses during the year  due to default by coun ter  partie
s to dep osit or i

nvestm ent transactions 
Am oun ts reco vered  from  prior-period losses, which are not shown 
sep arately on the balan ce sheet 

or t~ontractual Provisions for Reverse Repurchase Agreem ent~ 
Source of legal or contractual authorization for use of 

rever se repurchase 
agr eem ents 
Significan t violations of legal or contractual provisions for reverse 
rep urchas e agr eem en ts that occurred during th e year 
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Comm itm ents on December 31
, 2003, to repurchase securities under  yield 

m ainten ance agreem en ts 
M arket value on Dec em ber  31

, 2003, of the securities to be repurchased 

p. M ethods and significan t as sumptions used to estim ate fair value of 
investm ents, if fair value is not based on quoted  m arket prices 

q 

t. 

U . 

V 

Bas is for determ ining which investm ents
, if an y, are reported at am ortized  

cost 

For investm en ts in external investm ent pools th at ar e not SEC -register ed, 
a brief description of an y regulatory oversight for th e pool 
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D . CAPITAL ASSETS 
The fixed assets used  in the Special Purpose Governm ent Engaged only in Busin ess-Type 
Activities  are included  on the statem en t of net as sets of th e en tity and are capitalized  at 
cost. Deprec iation of all exhaus tible fixed  as sets us ed  by the en tity are charged  as an 
expense against operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported  on the balance sheet. 
D eprec iation for finan cial rep orting purposes is com puted  by th e straight-line m ethod 
over  th e us eful lives of the as sets. 

Balance Balance 
12/31/02 Additions Transfers" Retirem ents 12/31/03 

Capital assets uot being depreciated 
Land 3,742 3,742 

Construction in progress 10,532 7~1~8 (11.371) (1) 6,298 
Total cavital assets not bein~ 

depreciated $ 14,274 $ 7 138 $ (11,371) $ (1) $ 10,040 

Other capital assets 

Furniture, fixtures, an d eouioman 4,590 176 -- (21) 4,745 
Less acetan ulated dep reciation (3,503) (146) -- 20 (3.629) 
Total furniture, fixtures, and et 1.087 30 - 

Buildings an d impro vem en ts 65,144 5,310 

(1) 1,11~ 
(13) 70,44 1 

Less accumulated depreciation (35,057) (1,766) ~  10 (36,813) 
Total buildin~  an d im orovem, 30.087 3,544 

Infrastructure 5,303 5,922 
(3) 33,628 
- - 11,225 

Less accumulated dep reciation (3.856) (152) - -- (4,008) 
Total infrastructure 1,447 5.770 7.217 

Total other capital assets $ 32,621 $ 9,344 $ $ (4) $.._ ~41,961 
Capital Asset Sum m ary: 

Caoital assets not bein~ deorecial~ 14,274 7,138 (11,371) (1) 10,040 
Oth er capital as sets, at cost 

Total cost of capital assets 

Less accumulated dep reciation 

75,037 11,408 

89,311 18,546 

(42A16) (2,064) 
(11,371) 

(34) 86,411 
(35) 96,451 
30 (44 ,450) 

Capitalassets, net $ 46,895 $ 16,482 ~  $ (5) $ 52,001 

* Should be used only for those completed projects coming out of 
fixed assets not as sociatied with  transfers reported elsewhere in  this packet. 
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E. INVENTO RIES 

The Port Com m ission does not m aintain any inventories. 

F. RESTRI CTED ASSETS 

Res tricted assets in the Greater Baton Rouge Port Comm ission at Dece mber  31, 2003, 
reflected as $4,137,304 in the non-current as sets sec tion on Statemen t A, consisting of 
$69,809 in unpaid bond coupons, $4,056,304  in cash invested with fiscal agent and 
$11,470 in interest receivables . 

G . LEA VE 

COM PEN SATED ABSEN CES 

The Greater Baton Rouge Port Comm ission has the following policy on annual 
and sick leave: 

Em ployees earn an d accum ulate annual an d sick leave at various rates depen ding 
on th eir years of service. The am ount of annual an d sick leave that m ay be 
accum ul ated by each em ployee is unlim ited. Upon term ination, em ployees or 
their heirs are compensated  for up to 300 hours of unus ed  annual leave at the 
employee's hour ly rate of pay at th e time of term ination. Upon retirem en t, 
unused  annual leave in exces s of 300 hours plus un used  sick leave is used to 
compute retirem en t ben efits. 

Th e co st of leave privileges, computed in acco rdan ce wi th GASB Codification 
Section C60, is recognized as  a current year expenditure in the Operating Fund 
when leave is actually taken ; it is recognized  in th e enterprise funds when th e 
leave is earned . Th e cost of leave privileges  applicable to general governm ent 
operations not requiring current res our ces is recorded  in th e gen eral long-term  
obligations acco un t group. 

2. COM PEN SATORY LEAVE 

Em ployees who are considered having non-exempt status according to th e 
guidelines contained  in th e Fair Labor Standards Act m ay be paid for 

co mpensatory leave earned (K-time). Upon termination or tran sfer, an  employee 
will be paid for an y tim e an d one-half compensatory leave earned and m ay or m ay 
not be paid for an y straight hour-for-hour com pensatory leave earned. 
Compen sation paid will be based on the employees' hour ly rate of pay at 
term ination or transfer . The liability for accrued payable compensatory  leave at 
December 31, 2003 computed in acco rdance with  th e Codification of 
Governm ental Accounting an d Financial Reporting Standards, Section C60.105 is 
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estimated to be $86,943. The leave payable is recorded in the accompanying 
financial statem ents. 

H . R etirem ent System  

Substantially all of the employees of the Port Commission are mem bers of the Louisian a 
State Employees' Retirement System, a cost sharing multiple-employer, defined ben efit 
pension plan . Th e System  is a statewide public employee  retiremen t system (PERS) for 
the benefit of state em ployees, which is adm inistered an d co ntrolled  by a separate board 
of trustee s. 

All full-tim e Port Commission em ployees are eligible to participate in th e System . 
Benefits vest with 10 years of service. At retirem en t age, em ployees are en titled to 
annual ben efits equal to $300 plus 2.5% of their highest co nsec utive 36 months' average 
salary multiplied  by th eir years of credited service. 

Vested  employees are en titled to a retiremen t benefit, payable monthly for life at (a) an y 
age with 30 years of service, Oa) age 55 with 25 yeats of service, or (e) age 60 wi th 10 
years of service. In addition, ves ted  em ployees have the option of red uced benefits at any 
age with 20 years of service. The System  also provides death and disability ben efits. 
Ben efits ar e established  or am ended  by state statute. The System  issues an annual 
publicly available fin an cial report that includes  finan cial statem ents an d required 
supplem en tary inform ation for th e System . That rep ort m ay be obtained  by writing to th e 
State Employees Retirem en t System , Post Office Box 44213, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

70804-4213, or by calling (225) 922-0608 or (800) 256-3000. 

M em bers are required by state statute to contribute 7.5%  of gross salary, an d the Port 
Com mission is requi red  to contribute at an  actuarially determ ined  rate as required by R.S. 
11:102. Th e contribution rate for the twelve m onth  fiscal year en ded December 31, 2003, 
changed  at July 1, 2003 from  14.1%  to 15.2%  of annual covered payroll. The Port 
Comm ission contributions to th e System  for the tw elve m onth fiscal year  ending 
Decem ber 31,2003 an d Decem ber  31, 2002 an d th e fourteen m onth  period ending 
Decem ber 31, 2001 were $192,640, $172,296 an d $194,328, respectively, equal to the 
requi red contributions for each year . 

I. PO ST RETIREM ENT HEALTH CARE  AND LIFE IN SURAN CE BENEFITS 

GASB 12 requires th e following disclosures about an  em ployer's accounting for post 
retirem en t health care and life insurance benefits: 

1. 
2. 
3. 

4. 

A description of th e benefits provided an d the em ployee group covered. 
A description of th e accounting and funding policies followed for those ben efits. 
The cost of th ose benefits reco gnized  for th e period, unless the costs ar e not 
readily determ inable.** 
Th e effect of significant matters affecting the comparability of the costs 
recognized for all periods pres ented . 
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**If the cost of any post retirem en t health care or life insurance benefits cannot readily be 
separated from  the cost of providing such benefits for active employees or otherwise be 
reasonably approxim ated , th e total cost of providing those benefits to active employees 
and retirees, as  well as the number of active em ployees and the num ber  of retirees 
co vered by th e plan m ust be disclosed . 

Substan tially all Port Com m ission em ployee s becom e digible for post em ploym ent 
health  care, dental an d life insuran ce benefits if they reach norm al re tirem en t age while 
working for th e Port Comm ission. These ben efits for retirees an d similar ben efits for 
active em ployees are pro vided  through an  in surance co mpan y whose premium s are paid 
jointly by the em ployee and the Port Commission. For the twelve-month period ending 
Decem ber 31, 2003, th e co st of providing th ose ben efits for th e 23 retiree s totaled  
$74,273 compared  to 26 retirees with the co st of pro viding ben efits of $85,844 for the 
prior year tw elve-m onth  period en din g Decem ber 31, 2002. 

J. LEA SES 

1. OPERA TING LEA SES 

The total paym en ts for operating leas es during fiscal year  D ecem ber  31, 2003 
amounted to $0. A sched ule of paymen ts for operating leases follows: 

FY2008- FY 2013- 

m -m ,---f!e,se b-"y gnn3 ~:~9no4 Fv2005 ~vgnn,~ b-'Yg007 9m ~ 2015 

Total 

$__ $__ $__ $__ $ $ 

2. CAPITA L LEA SES 

Capital leases are (are not) recognized  in the acco mpanying finan cial statem ents. Th e 
am ounts to be accrued for capital leases and th e disclosures required for capital an d 

operating leases by National Council on Governmental Accoun ting (NCGA) Statement 
No. 5, as adopted by the Governm en tal Accoun ting Standards Board, and FA SB 13 
should be rep orted on th e following sched ules: 
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Capital leases are defined as an arran gem ent in which any one of the following conditions 

apply: (1) ownership tran sfers by the end of the lease, (2) the lease contains a bargain 
purchase option, (3) the lease term is 75% of the asset life or, (4) the discounted 
m inim um  lease paym ents are 90%  of th e fair m arket value of th e as set. 

a. Offi ce space 

b. Equipm en t 

c. Land 

Total 

Last Rem aining Rem aining 

Date of paym en t interest to principal to Fund that 

l~ c~, C~tC, end nflen~e~ end r,,f" 1.,:.~,~e, pny~ le~n~e 

The following is a schedule by years of future m inim um lease paym ents under capital 



3. LESSOR DIRECT FIN AN CING LEA SES 

A lease is classified as a direct financing lease (1) when any one of the four 
capitalization criteria used  to define a capital lease for the lessee is met an d (2) 
when  both th e following criteria are satisfied: 
~ CoUectibility of th e minim um  lease paym en ts is reasonably pred ictable. 
~ N o im portant unce rtainties  surround th e am ount of th e unreim bursable 

costs yet to be incurred  by th e les sor under th e lease. 

Provide a gen eral description of th e direct financing agreemen t, and complete the 
chart below : 

Com pn~itlon r~~ l~a~  

a. Offi ce space 

b. Equipm ent 

c. Land 

Less am oun ts repres enting executory costs 

M inim um  lease paym en t receivable 

Less allow an ce for doubtful accounts 
N et m inim um  lease paym ents receivable 

Less unearned incom e 
N et investm ent in direct fin an cing lease 

M inim um  lease 

0 

0 

0 

$ 

M inim um  lease paym en ts do not include co ntingen t ren tals, which m ay be 
received  as stipulated in th e lease contracts. Contingen t rental paym en ts occur  if 
for example th e use of th e equipm ent, land, or  building etc., exce ed s a ce~ Jn 
level of activity each year. Contingen t ren tals received  for fisca l year  2003 were 
$0 for office space, $0 for equipment, and $0 for lan d. 

The following is a sched ule by year of minimum  leas es receivable for th e 
rem aining fiscal years of th e lease as of Decem ber 31, 2003: 

Y ear en din g D ecem b er 3 1 

2 0 0 3 

2 0 0 4 

2 0 0 5 
2 0 0 6 

2 0 0 7 

2 0 0 8-2 0 12 

2 0 13 -2 0 17 

T o tal 
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4. LESSOR - OPERA TIN G LEA SE 

Provide the cost and earrying am ount
, if different, of property on lease or held for 

lease organized by major class of property an d the am ount of accumulated  
depreciation as  of December 31

, 2003: 

(in thousands) C~ t 

a. Facility Space 

b. Equipm ent 

c. Land 

$ 38,307 
2~257 

3,318 

Total $ 43 882 

A ccum ulated Carrying 

A m  nl~nt 

The following is a schedule by years of m inim um  future rentals 
on non-cancelable 

operating lease(s) as of December 31, 2003: 

Twelve M onth 

Period Ended Facility 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

And Later 

Total 

$ 1,692 

949 

511 

223 

108 

Equipment 

$ 36 

15 

0 

0 

0 

Land 

154 

98 

42 

23 

47 

Other 

$ 

Total 

$ 1,882 

1,062 

553 

246 

155 

There w ere no contingent rentals from  operating leases received in the fiscal year for 
office space

, equipm ent and for lan d. 
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O . IN-K IND  CO NTRIBUTIO NS 

There w ere no in-kind contributions that w ere not included in the accom panying financial 

statem ents. 

P. D EFEA SED ISSUES 

There wer e no defeased issues during th e tw elve m onth period ended Decem ber  31, 2003 
for th e Greater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission. 

Q. COOPERATIVE ENDEAVORS 

LRS 33:9022 defines co operative en deavors as an y form  of econom ic developm en t 
assistance betw een and am ong the state of Louisian a, its local governm ental subdivisions, 
political corporations, public benefit corporations, th e United States govern m ent or its 
agencies, or any public or private association, corp oration, or individual. Th e term  
co operative endeavor includes cooperative finan cing, cooperative developm en t, or an y 
form  of cooperative eco nomic developm ent activity. Th e state of Louisiana has entered 
into cooperative endeavor agreem en ts with  certain en tities aim ed at developing th e 

econom y of th e state. 

As of Decem ber 31, 2003, the Greater Baton Rouge Port Comm ission had six cooperative 
endeavor contracts awarded in the am ount of $ 7,681,368. Approximately $ 7,057,582 of 
th e costs have been incurred . Th e Port Comm ission has received reim bursem en t for these 

projects of $ 4,805,878 from the Departmen t of Transportation and Development. Th e 
estim ated  Port Comm ission liability to com plete construction work in progress after 
m aximum  reimbursem en t is approxim ately $249,726, plus additional fees for testing an d 
inspection. At Decem ber 31, 2003, th ere were no contracts for construction work th at have 
not been awarded. 

R. GOVERNM ENT-M ANDATED NONEXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (GRANTS) 

Th e following government-mandated non-exchange transactions (gran ts) were received 
during fiscal year  2003: 

CFD A 

N~m ber 

State M atch 

P er~~nta~  

Total Am ount 
nF ~qr~nt 

$ 

Total government-man dated nonexchan ge tran sactions (grants) $ 
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W . SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

There were no material event(s) affecting the Port Commission occurring between the close 
of th e fiscal period and issuance of the financial statem ent. 

X . SEG M EN T IN FO RM ATIO N 

Governm en ts th at report enterprise fim ds or that use enterprise fund accounting an d 
reporting standards to rep ort their activities ar e required to present segm ent inform ation for 
th ose activities in the notes to th e financial statem ents. For the purposes  of th is disclosure, 

a segment is an identifiable activity (or group of activities), rep orted as or within an  
en terprise fund or an  other stan d-alone entity that has one or m ore bonds or oth er debt 
instruments outstanding, with a revenue stream pledged in support of that debt. In addition, 
th e activity's reven ues, expen ses, gains an d losses, as sets, and liabilities are required  to be 
accounted for sep arately. Th is requirem ent for sep ar ate accounting applies if im posed by 
an  external party, such as acco unting and rep orting req uirem ents set forth in bond 
indentures. Disclosure req uirem en ts for each segm ent should be m et by identifying th e 
types of goods an d services provided an d by presenting condensed finan cial statem ents in 

the notes, including the elem ents in A through C below (GASB 34, paragraph 122, as 
modified by GASB 37, paragraph 17.) 

A . Conden sed statem en t of net as sets: 

(1) Total assets - distinguishing between  curren t assets, capital assets, and other 
as sets. Am oun ts receivable from  oth er funds or th e Port Com m ission should be 
rep orted sep ar ately. 

(2) Total liabilities - distinguishing between current an d long-term am oun tsl 



B. Condensed Statem ent of Revenues
, Expenses, and Changes in N et Assets: 

(1) Operating revenues Coy major source) 
(2) Op erating expenses, Depreciation (including any amortization) should be 

iden tified sep arately. 
(3) Op erating income (loss). 
(4) Non-operating revenues (expenses) - with sep arate rep orting of major 

reven ues  an d expenses. 
(5) Capital contributions and additions to permanen t and term en dowmen ts. 

(6) Special an d extraordinary items. 
(7) Transfers. 
(8) Change in net assets. 
(9) Beginning net assets. 
(10) Ending net assets. 

Condensed  Statem en t of Reven ues
, Expenses, an d Chan ges in Net Assets: 

O perating revenues 
O perating exp enses 
D epreciation and am ortization 
O perating incom e (loss) 
N onoperating revenues (expenses) 
C apital contributions/addition s to 

perm anent and term  endow m ents 
Special and extraordinary item s 
T ransfers in 
T ransfers out 
C hange in net assets 
B eginning net assets 
E nding net assets 

C. Conden sed  statem en t of cash flows: 

(1) 

(2) 
(3) 

Net cash provided (used) by: 
(a) Operating activities 
Co) Noncapital finan cing activities 
(c) Capital and related finan cing activities 
(d) Investing activities 
Beginning cash an d cash equivalen t balances 
Ending cash an d cash equivalent balances 
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(in thousands) 

$ 4,449 
4 .0 2 5 

5.7 04 

0 

$ 3,988 
$ 58,760 
$ 62,748 



Conden sed Statem ent of Cash Flows: 

N et cash provided (used) by operating activities 
N et cash provided (used) by noncapital 

financing activities 

N et cash provided (used) by capital and related 
financing activities 

N et cash provided (used) by investing activities 
B eginning cash and cash equivalent balances 

E nding cash and cash equivalent balances 

Y . D UE TO /D UE FR O M  AN D TR AN SFER S 

(in thousands) 

$ 586 

1. List by fund type the am ounts due from  other funds detailed b
y individual fund 

at your fiscal year end: 

Typ,~ of Wllnd lXTam ~ ,~f 1~)1nd A 
to ni;tit 

D ue from  O ther G overnm ents 

Total due from other funds $ 

2. List by fund type th e am ounts due to oth er  funds detailed by individual fund at fi
scal year end: 

]~.Tarn @ nf 1~'11nd Am nHnt 

Total due to other funds 

3. List by fund type all Iransfers from  other  funds for the fi
scal year : 

Total transfers from  oth er funds 
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4. List by fund type all transfers to other funds for th e fiscal year: 



GREATER BATO N RO UG E PO RT CO M M ISSION 
STATE O F LO UISIANA 

For the Twelve M onth s Ended Decem ber 31, 2003 

SCHEDULE OF PER DIEM  PAID TO BOARD M EM BERS 
Schedule 1 

C nm m i~ iorter A m ou n t in d 

B rian , R an dy 

D 'A g o stin o , C h arles 

D ragg , A lv in 

Ishm ael, C alv in 

Joh n son , L arry 

Jun eau , Jerald 

K im b all, H . M  . 

R obertson , L y n n 

S cott, H en ry 

S m ith , L u eille 

T h ib au t, C h arles 

T illis, C h u ek y 

W  ales, R ob ert 

W  allace, S tev e 

W o od s, L arry 

1 4 2 5 

1 4 2 5 

1 72 5 

1 2 0 0 

1 80 0 

1 80 0 

1 3 50 

1 2 7 5 

1 35 0 

1 2 7 5 

1 4 2 5 

1,3 5 0 

1,50 0 

1,12 5 

1.5 75 

T otalP er D iem s $ 2 1,600 

SCH ED ULE O F STA TE FUN D IN G  
Schedule 2 

(Not applicable to the commission activities) 

Total 
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G R EATER BATO N R O U G E PO RT CO M M ISSIO N 
STA TE O F LO UISIA NA 

For the Tw elve M onth  Period Ended D ecem ber 31, 2003 

SCH EDULE O F RE IM BUR SEM ENT CON TRA CTS PA YABLE 

Principal Principal 
Date of Original Outstanding Redeemed Outstanding 

Issue Issue Issue 12/31/2002 (Issued) 12/31/2003 

Schedule 3-A 

Interest 
Interest Outstan ding 
Rates 12/31/2003 

SCH EDULE O F N O TES PAYABLE 
Principal 
Outstandin Principal 

Date of Original g Redeem ed Outstanding 
Issue Issue Issue 12/31/2002 (Issued) 12/31/2003 

Schedule 3-B 

Interest 
Interest Outstan ding 
Rates 12/31/2003 

Total 

SCH EDUL E O F BO N D S PAYA BLE 

(in thousands) 

Issue 

Principal 
Date of Original Outstanding 
Issue Issue 12/31/2002 

$ 

Schedule 3-C 

1999A 03/31/99 $ 5,700 $ 5,185 

1999B 03/31/99 3,300 $ 3,000 

$ 9,000 

*Send copies of new am ortization schedules 



 



 

GREATER BATO N ROUG E PORT COM M ISSIO N 
STA TE O F LO UISIAN A 

For The Tw elve M onth Period Ended D ecem ber 31, 2003 

SCH EDUL E O F N O TES PAYABLE AM O R TIZATIO N Sched ule 4-C 

Fiscal Y ear 
E ndine: 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008-20 12 

2013-2017 

2018-2022 

2023-2027 

T otal 

P rincina 

$ 

SCHEDUL E O F BO N D S PAYAB LE AM O RTIZATION Schedul e 4-D 

(in thousands) 

Fiscal Y ear 
Endine: 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009-2013 

2014-2018 

2019 

T otal 

Princina 

$ 320 

340 

355 

380 

395 

2.335 

3_050 

710 

$ 433 

4 

38g 

364 

339 

333 

622 

9 
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GREATER BATON ROUGE PORT COMMISSION 

GREATER BATON ROUGE PORT COMMISSION
 
STATE OF LOUISIANA
 

COMPARISON FIGURES
 
For The Twelve Month Period Ended December 31, 2003
 

To Assist OSRAP in deteImining the reason for the change in financial position for the state and 
reason for the changes in the budget, please complete the schedule below. If the change is 
greater than 10% explain the reason for the change. 

Percentage 
2003 2002 Difference Change 

1) Revenues $ 4,449 $ 4,493 $ (44) 0/0 (1.00) 

Expenses $ 6,089 $ 5,856 $ 233 0/0 4.00 

2) Capital Assets $ 52,001 $ 46,895 $ 5,106 0/0 10.9 

Long-term debt $ 7,000 $ 8,029 $ (1,029) 0/0 12.82 

Net Assets $ 62,748 $ 58,760 $ 3,988 % 6~78 

Explanation of Change (greater than 10%) 
-Capital Assets increase is due to completion of several major construction projects 
during fiscal year ending December 31, 2003. 
-Long Term Debt reduction was due to regularly schedule payments against principal 
balance during fiscal year ending December 31,2003. 

3) 2003 Original 2003 Final Percentage 
Budget Budget Difference Change 

Revenues $ 5,334 $ 4,606 $ (728) % (13.7)
 

Expenditures $ 4,612 $ 4,436 $ (176) % (0.02)
 

Explanation of Change (greater than 10%) 
--Decrease in Revenues budget was primarily due to adjustment for reduced revenues­
generating activity at the general cargo docks a the port. 

Schedule 15 
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State of Louisiana 
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Construction Contr acts Payable 

W e recomm end that the Port Comm ission implement new procedures to ensure that proper year-end cutoff 
on th e construction contracts is achieved. Each construction contract's Decem ber application for paym ent 
should be review ed to determ ine if the proper am ount was set up as a payable. 

Lease A greem ents 

Finding: 

During our curren t year testing, it was noted th at the term s on various rental agreem ents had changed, 

however the proper docum entation was not m aintained in th e rental folder. 



Greater Baton Rouge Port Com m ission 
February 23, 2004 
Page 2 

W e recomm end that all changes to rental agreem ents be comm unicated to the accounting departm ent, an d 
th e proper docum entation should be added to the tenan ts rental file. 

Safekeeping A ccount Authorization 

During th e current year, it was noted  th at the persons authorized to initiate and confirm  business 
transactions as confirm ed  by th e bank were not curren t on th e safekeeping acco unt. 

W e recomm end th at th e Port Com m ission update th e listing of persons auth orized  to initiate and co nfirm  
business transactions on file with  th e bank. 

This report is intended  solely for th e inform ation an d use of th e Greater Baton Rouge Port Comm ission an d 
its m an agem en t. However , th is rep ort is a m atter of public record an d its distribution is not lim ited. 

Respectfully subm itted, 



PO RT O F G REA TER 
BA TON  ROU GE 

Post Office Box 380 ~ Port Allen, Louisiana 70767-0380 ~ Phone (225) 342-1660 ~ Fax (225) 342-1666 ~ www.portgbr.com 

M arch 31, 2004 

M r. Grover Austin 
Office of Legislative Auditor 
P.O . Box 94397 
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9397 

Dear M r. Austin: 

This letter is written to address the matter of compliance as reported by our auditors, 
Haun is T. Bourgeois, in their Schedule of Current Year Audit Findings for the year ended 
December 31, 2003. 

As indicated in note 2 of the Basic Financial Statemem s, the Port Commission failed to 
maintain adequate federal deposit insurance or obtain a sufficien t am ount of pledged 
collateral for their Cash and Cash Equivalen ts. At Dece mber 31, 2003, the Port 
Commission was  underinsured by $125,141. This relates to the Port Commission's 
custodial bank failing to pledge ad equa te securities on the deposits. 

Checking to ensure that an  ad eq uate amount of co llateral is available an d pled ged  to th e 
Cas h an d Cash Equivalent acco unts has been adopted as  a mandatory component of the 
port's accoun ting procedur es. 

Executive D irector an d CEO 

xc: AI Starns 
Audit file 



 

PO RT O F G REA TER 
BA TON  ROU GE 

Post Office Box 380 ~ Port Allen, Louisiana 70767-0380 ~ Phone (225) 342-1660 ~ Fax (225) 342-1666 ~ www.portgbr.com 

M arch 31, 2004 

M r. Crrover  Austin 
Office  of Legislative Auditor 
P.O. Box 94397 
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9397 

D ear Mr . Austin : 

This letter is written to address the matters of internal control as reported by our auditors, 
Hannis T. Bourgeois, in their M anagement Letter  dated  February 23, 2004. Each item  is 
listed below . 

Construction Contracts Payable 

During our  current year and prior year testing of co nstruction contracts, it was noted that 
the Decembe r applications for paym ent submitted to the Port Commission for two oftbe  

incomplete co nstruction projects at December 31, 2003, had not been recorded as 
payables as  of year -end. Likewise, the co rresponding am ounts due from  the State for th e 

capital conm'butions on these projects were also not recorded. 

Corrective Action Taken 

New procedur es will be enacted in 2004 to ens ure that proper year-end cutoff on the 
construction co ntracts is achieved, inclusive of reviewing the Decem ber applications  for 
paym ent to determine whether the prope r am ount was set up as  a payable. 

Lease A greem ents 

Finding: 

During our  current year testing, it was  noted tha t the terms on various rental agreements 
had changed , however the proper documentation was  not maintained in th e rental folder. 



Greater Baton Rouge Port Comm ission 
M arch 31, 2003 
Page 2 

Corrective Action Taken 

N ecessary changes to any such agreem ents will be formally documented an d proper 
written correspondence w ill be  placed in the files. 

Safekeeping Account A uthorization 

Finding: 

During the current year, it was noted that persons authorized to initiate an d confirm  
business transactions  as confirm ed by the bank w ere not current on the safekeeping 
account. 

Corrective Action Tak en 

The list of employees authorized to initiate an d confirm  business tran sactions on the 
safekeeping account has be en updated an d placed on file with  the bank. 

Executive Director an d CEO 

xc: A1 Starns 
Audit file 




